
the STA TE OE NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPA R TMENT OF TRA NSPOR TA TION

T
DeparimeiU of TruMportalioa

"illiam Cass, P.I

Commissioner

^  n W7 3^- DavidRodrigue, P.E.Willmm Cass, P.E. Commissioner

Andre Briere, Colonel, USAF(RET)

Deputy Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with the County of Cheshire,
(Vendor 177372), Keene, New Hampshire, Project #68034E, by increasing the price limitation by
$24,500, from $490,600 to $515,100, effective upon Governor and Council approval, with no change to
the end date of June 30, 2025. The original agreement was approved by Governor and Council on June
14, 2023, Item # 72. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $24,500

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5310 (Section 5310) Enhanced Mobility of Seniors & Individuals with Disabilities Program by $24,500
from $490,600 to $515,100. The County of Cheshire provides transportation services in the Region 5
Monadnock Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) service area utilizing Section 5310 funds to support
eligible activities including operating, capital, mobility management, and volunteer driver programs.

The Department's SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from the Section 5310 that provides funds
for capital, contracted services, and mobility management for seniors and individuals with disabilities in
New Hampshire.

The County of Cheshire, in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the required
non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not
be requested to support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.
Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 • FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •WWW.NHDOT.COM



Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.
I
I

j  Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT

This Grant Amendment ("Amendment")' is entered into this day of QCT ^ 2024.
by and between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, 7 Hazen Drive, Goncord NH 03302-0483, (hereinafter referred to
as "State") and County of Cheshire (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), collectively
referred to as ('the Parties").

WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a Grant Agreement, approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 14, 2023, Item 72. (hereinafter referred to as "the Grant");

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Grant as provided in this Amendment; and
I

WHEREAS, the Grant allows for amendments by an instrument in writing executed by both
Parties; '

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Grant, and set forth herein, the Ijarties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Section 1.8, "Grant Limitation" of the G-1 form is amended to read ($515,100)

2. Amended Exhibit C. Budget..C. 1 be amended to include an additional $24,500 of

5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities, for a
revised contract price of $515,100;

a. Table-below

3. This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by the New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

4. Except as speciftcally amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, the Grant, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder, shall remain in full
force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein.



EXHIBIT C

BUDGET'(REVISED)

SFV SFY
Amendment

Revised

Program Funding 1024 2025 Total

l*TA Section 5310 1

Contracted Services $181,909 $181,909 -$79,139 $284,679

Mobility Management Activities $52,441 $52,441 -$780 $104,102

Regional Mobility Manager Position $10,950 $10,950 $104,419 $126,319

Total FTA Section 5310 Funds $245,300 $245,300 $24,500 $515,100
1

1

Amended Total Grant Funding $515,100

b. Funds are confingeni upon Federal approprialions.



IN WITNESS WMEREOr, the Parlies hereto have set their hands to the date first-written
above. I

Comitv of Cheshire. /

Bv: C-
Print Name^tind/Title Christopher 0. Coates, County Administrator

Date: 2-Oct-2024

NH Dcnartmciit of Ti ansnoftation

Date: /  I

Pnn^,e and Tide Micliclle L. WillterS Director of^nautics. Kail
j  ̂ - h' II-

Anprovccl bv Attorney General j

Date:

'C^herA 7^£rcrce^
Appfoved bv Governor and Council

By:
Print mme and Tit

G &C Item number: G ScC Meeting Date:



CHESHIRE COUNTY

EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

Amendment j

Certificate of Good Standing Exemption
I

Certificate of C.mpnrate Vnte

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement j
2CFRPart200 '

FTA Section 5310



County of Cheshire, New Hampshire

EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISION

County of Cheshire, New Hampshire is not required to have a Certificate of Good
Standing because they are a "political subdivision" \mder RSA 5:18-a.
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County of Cheshire
12 Comi Sliccl, Kcciic, NH 03'W1

\nv\v.<x).clicsliiic.nli.iis

CKRTinCATli: OF VOTE

I, Terry M. Claik, Cheshire Counly Commissioner Clerk, do hereby certify that I am a duly elected
OfTicer of the County of Cheshire. I hereby certify tlie following is a true copy of a yote taken at a
meeting of the Commissioners of (he County of Cheshire duly called and held on October 2, 2024 at
which a quorum of the Commissioners was present and yoting.

WHEREAS: The New Hampshire Department of Transportation has awarded the County of Cheshire an
amendment to (he TTA Section 5310 (Combined^ RCC Program manl agreement for an additional

$24,500, for a total grant amount of $515,100, with completion dale of June 30, 2025.

VOTED: That County Administrator Christopher C.ICoate.s is hereby authorized on behalfof the County
of Cheshire to accept the aforementioned grant and to enter into a grant agreement vyith the
aforementioned fiinder and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate
to effect the purpose of this vote; and to also enter into any contractual agreements; including, but not
limited to vendor subcontracts, subrecipient agreements, and/or memorandums of understandings; as
necessary to carry out the goals, objectives, and activities of the agreement.

I

VOTED: That Grants.Manauer Suzanne Banslev or Grants Specialist Jennifer Robinson are hereby
appointed as the authorized certifying officials, contacts, and liaisons with regards to the above referenced
agreement and are both hereby authorized on behalf o^f the County of Cheshire to certify or sign vouchers
or requisitions for payments or claims to the agreement.

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the execution of this document. I further certify that it is understood that the
State of New Hampshire will rely on this certilieate as evidence that the person listed above currently
occupies the position indicated and that they have fulllauthority to bind the Municipality. This authority
rcmnins valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certiticate;of Authority, ^■-7/;

Commissionei
STATE or NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of Cheshire

y M. Clark

The forgoing instrument wass  aeknowialgodjb.efore me this 2nd dav of October. j2024i by Terrv M. Clark.
\  IIIII,

i  • COMMVSSlOtJl—:; 5 1 1/ t/ ^ _
I  ; I Kimberly K. Mdy, Notary Public: ly K. M^y, Notary

Commission Expires/Febrliarv 19.2025

Area Code 603 \ Page 1 of 1
* County Commissioners 352-8215/Fax 355-3026 » Registry of Deeds 352-0<t03/Fax 352-7676 * Finance Department 3SS-0154/Fax 355-3000 - 12 Court
Street, Keene, NH 03431 • County Sheriff 352-4238/Fax 355-3020 ♦ County Attorney 3S2-0056/Fax 355-3012 - 12 Court Street, Keene, NH 03431 •
Alternative Sentencing/Mental Health Court 35S-0160/Fax 355-0159 • 265 Washington St. Keene N.H. ♦ Department of Corrections 825 Marlboro Street,
Keene, 03431 - 903-1600/Fax 352-4044 * Maplewood Nursing Home & AsslstediUvIng 399-4912/Fax 399:700J - TTY Access 1-800-735-2964 * Facililies '
399-7300/Fax 399-7357 . Human Resources 399-7317/399-7378 » "GfantrDepartmeht'35S-3023/Fax.3i55/3000



Primex'
NK PubTic ftj'tk Monogemeni Exehongt CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under (he New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its' Trust Agreement and bylaws, Piimex' Is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in |the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition. Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the [terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex'. including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence timit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on Isehaif of the member. General Liability coverage Is lirnited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage 8 (Properly
Damage Uabillty) only, Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), 0 (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liabiilly) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex'. As of the date tliis certificate is Issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year. \

This CertiRcate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rigltts upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below. I

PartlcipalinQ Member

Cheshire County
12 Court Street

1st Floor - Room 171

Keene, NH 03431

Member Number:

601

Company Affording Coverege:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex^
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord, NH 03301-2624

^EffeetiVe'D'it^
m/dwwy)v.

l^ExplfStldn'Date^

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

Claims

Maden □ Occu

1/1/2024 1/1/2025 Each Occurrence

General Aggregate

rrence
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)
Med Exp (Any one person)

$ 2,000,000
$ 10,000,000

X  Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll; $1,000

1/1/20241 1/1/2025

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(EschAcdOent)

Aggregate

$2,000,000

$10,000,000

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease — Eaen Envioyoe $2,000,000

Disease - Potcr umii

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 Blanket Umil, Replacement
Cost (unless otherwise stated) Deductible:

$1,000

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Prtmex' - NH Public Risk IVIanagement Exchange
1
1 By: SicM Thfiutt

State of New Hampshire
Department of Transportation
7 Hazen Dr
PO Box 483
Concord, NH 03302

Date; 1/3/2024 mDurcell®nhDrimex.ora

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEBERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS ANB ASSURANCES FOR FTA
ASSISTANCEiPROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)
County o< Ctaihlro (fl*cal tpontw fof MonsdoocK RtBtofi CoMdInalIno Council lot Cominuiilty Trtniportollon)

Name of Applicant: ! ■ • ^

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here\ \/ .

O/-

The Applicant certifies to the, applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category 1
I

1
01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Eveiy Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

Certification

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Ai-ea Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas j

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivei7 for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Eiifianced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs | ■

13 State of Good Repair Grants ^

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

.19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CBRTtPlCATIONS AND ASSUUANCE8 SIGNATUItE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Niiiue of (he Applicant:

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf of the ApplicaiU, I declare (hat it has duly authorized me to make these

Certifications and Assurances and bind its cotnpiinnce. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requuemenis, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply with (lie Certincations and Assurances as

indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its 'Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administratioh (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, iiTespecliye of whether the individual (hat acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to represent it.

The Ceiliftcalions and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to eacli Award for which it now seeks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal llscal year.

The Applicant afTlrms (lie truthfulness and accuracy of (he Ceillfications ond Assurances it has selected in the

statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and ackjiovvledges that the
Progrum Fraud CivllRemeciies Actof 1986,31 U.S.C. § 3801 clscq.^ and implementing U.S. DOTrcgulutions,
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies," A9 CFR poii 31, apply to any certification, assurance orsubmissiou made to
PTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § lOOJ apply to any cci-tification, assurance, crsubiuissiou made in
connection with a federal public tianspoitation program autiionzed by 49 U.S.C. ciiaptcr S3 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing (his documeiu, UlBOlace under penalties of perjury that the foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any otlicrstnteincntsuWMby me on behalf of tli

Signature. Date: 3/6/24

Name
Chrittophw C. CMiflt, County AemMdrator Authorised Hepresentative of Applicant



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comp]y with the requirements contained In the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds, the language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I ackjiowledgc receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement. I

County of Cheshire 6/5/24

Name of Agency

Suzanne Bansley, Grants Manager

Name of Authorized Official

Date

Signature



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
Ih^fiiuiniiml i\f,.Trtuaitiuititli)»

Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFRi200 Agreement

Name of Awardiiif^ Af^ency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Deparlment of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient/Contracting Agency: Cheshire County

Cheshire County shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as
outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal
Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as
follows:

FTA award project description: ̂^l.v rtn/nircd tn he responsive /o (Ue Feileral l^iiinlinp Accoini/nhiUfy find
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $24,500

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.513
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5310 RCC PROGRAM APPLICATIONS

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): N|H-2023-012
Federal Award Date: 11/29/23

Contact information for sub-awarding official:!

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: FrederickJ.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone:603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NFlDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subiccipient/Coii tractor In formation:

Subrecipient/Contractor Name: Cheshire County
Subrecipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.: RX31FLvKUVY3
Name of authorizing subrecipient/conlracting official: John G. "Jack" Wozmak
Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Chair County Commissioners
Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: De Minimis
(An approvedfederally recognized indirect cost rale negotiated between the snbrecipienl/contraclor and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the suhrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (0).

Subaward Period of perforinance:

Start Date: 6/14/23 End Date: 6/30/25
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
l^iiHuiniMl\i^.Tr4iiuiii>il4)tum

Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bvkliis action (coniract/anwudmeiii):

Rot- FRY: 2025 Section; 5310 RCC Amount:$24'500

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the sitbiecivicnt (oriuhiuicomruci & luucmimenis):

For FRY: 2025 Section: 5310 RCC Amount: $5 15,100
I

i
I

Pass-thi oiitfh rcauirements: I

The Subiecipienl/Conlraclor, Cheshire County agrees to meet ail requirement imposed by the
pass-through entity (NI-IDOT)on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in
accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient/Contractor, Cheshire Coiin/v agrees to any additional requirements that the
pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDO'f) to meet its own responsibility to the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including
identincation of any required financial and performance reports.

I

'flie Subrecipient/Contractor, Cheshire County agrees to permit the pass-through entity
(NRIDO'R) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as
necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the ijequircments of this pait; and appropriate terms
and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date: 2-Oct-2024

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: John G. "Jack" Wozniak

Title ol'authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: Chair County CQmmissioners

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: / ^
Christopher C. Coates, County Administrator
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THESTA TE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
UtPAR TMEST OE ERA SSPOR TA T/OS

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

David Rodrigue, P.E.
AtsisimtU Commisskmof

Andre Briere, Coionet, ESAF(RET)
Deputy Commissioner

Bureau of Rail & Transit

April 26,2023

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into a st)le source agreement with the County of
Cheshire, (Vendor 177372), Keene, New Hampshire, for an amount not to exceed $490,600 for
coordinated transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities, for the period July 1,2023
through June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years
if needed and justified.

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

FY 2024

$245,300

FY 2025

$245,300

EXPLANATION

The County of Cheshire has been awarded Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) program funds in die amount of
$490,600 to provide expanded transportation services in the Region 5 Monadnock Regional Coordinating
Council (RCC) service area.

FTA Section 5310 funds support eligible activities including operating, capital, mobility management, and
volunteer driver programs.

The Department's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes fttnds from the FTA Section
5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) that provides funds
for capital, contracted services, and mobility management for seniors and individuals with disabilities in
New Hampshire.

Ihe County of Cheshire will act as the lead agency to facilitate the provision of accessible demand
response transportation services for seniors and individuals with disabilities within the region and will

JOHN 0 MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 4S3 » CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE (603) 271-3734 • FAX (603) 271-3914 • TDO RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •VWWVNHOOT COM



support mobility management and strategic planning activities in cooperation with the Region 5
'Monadnock Regional Coordinating Council. |

The Section 5310 RCC funds were allocated by region according to a formula based on regional
populations of residents over 65 and those between ages of 5-64 with disabilities. Each individual
RCC was responsible for conducting its own project solicitation, evaluation, arid prioritization and then
submitting one regional application for eligible Section 5310 RCC projects through an approved lead
agency. The Monadnock RCC designated the County of Cheshire as the lead agency for Region 5 and
tasked the County of Cheshire with applying for Section 5310 RCC funds on behalf of Region 5. ̂
r^uired by FTA, all projects are identified in a locally developed coordinated public transit-human
services transportation plan. |

The County of Cheshire, in conjunction with its regional partners aS applicable, will provide the required
non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be
requested to support this program. I

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the Department
will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2024 and 2025 budget.
Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation. j

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William Cass; P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments



FORW^NUMBERG-l„(vci-slon,ii/2021)

Subjece; SFV 2024 7^-2025 FTA Section 531,0 RCC Re'gion'S
»  f, , • t"

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hanijishireahd thciCrantcc hereby | , .
Mutually agree as'"follows: I

'  GENERAlJiPRbVIsiONS.
-1. idcntiflcationiandib'cnnitions^ 1.

l.K Slate AgchcyjNahic:

NH ;pepartment:of Transpqrtatibri

f

'1.2. State*Agency Address
, PQ Box 483 & HazenOr. Concprd, NH'03302-0483-

1.3. Grantee Nai'nc
,Gheshlt;e'Go'unty ' "

^ J I s' .

1.4". Gfaiitcc Address '

i 2.Cpurt.s1:,reel. Keehe;, NH 03431 -3402
1  . . . :

1 ;5 tjraht^Phbnc,"#.. .
60l3-355t3023 .

1^:6. AI^'unlTjiurnbcr

04-96-96*^964010-2916-
^500575

072

1.7. Cqnipjdtion Date'

June3p,-2P25

1 .'8. Gr^fliimitation

$490:600'
f

1.9.Gianl6fl3ccrfbr;.State Agency |
Frederidt'Putler. Rubljc Transportation Administrator,
Bur'eau^bfRail.&Transit |

IrlO. Stalc Agcncy Telephone Numbcr-

.603T2V.ir2565

2."SC0PE OF VyORK: /In excliarige for grail fiinds provide by the'Sta.tc of New Hampshii-e, acting
-UiroughUie Agency idcntifiedm block 1.1 (hereihaftcjreferrcd to as "the State"), tlic.dfahteeldehtified in
block 1.3 ̂ ci-cinaftcr referred to as "the Grantee"), shall-perform tliat work identified and more pailieulorly
described in the scope of woilc attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hcreihaflci" referred to
as "the Pfpject"). |

:lf Grahtee is a niLinicipality or village district: "By.slgning this.fonii that wc Have cpmplicd wlUi
<anv.ipublieinec(ln^;reqijlrement for acceptance'ortiiis grantvihclu'dihgir applicable'RSA'31:9S-b';"
1.1 1. 1.12. Name &.'Titlc:6fGraiitcc Signof 1

Chris,G6ates,Gounty Adrriinistfato'r

. Gi-anlec5ignaturc 2"N/A-- Nariie & Title of Grahtec.Signor 2 N/A [

Gi*antee:Sj^atuie'3 N/A-'.

••

'Nan[ie-& title of Grantee Signor 3'N/A ■

-1.. 13 Statc'AgMcy Sighatti]e(s) 1 1.14. Nartwr&titie.pfStatc.AgCTcy'SiignbiXs) '

Director ofAooifititfetr Rah^A

1.15. Appfp^l by. Alioiiicy Gciicral (Eonn, Subslan^ and Exccutidh):(if.G &; G approval reqiaired)

Attorncy/GencrL: On "
1.16. A'l^roigHwpfljiern^iid Councir(if applicable)

r"S^KJ<LsECRE^YOF:SWE JIJN;h.2023

Page I of3
Contractor Initials

-cce

Date, (M/26/2023



J.

4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

.5.5

7.

7,t.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.1

8J.

9.

9.1.

AUKA COVF.HF.I). Gxccpi u olhcfwiac siKCifieiiliy pmvidcd for iKrcin, ihe
Cmniec shall perTonn the in, and with rcspcci lo, ihc Stale of New,
llainpshire.
Krir.cTivE i>Ari:: coMrn-rioN ok rnojEcr.

'■>11} Acrccnicnt, and all obtitsiiona of (be panies bcrcundcr. shall bccnnc
cfTcctivc on the dale on (be date of approval of (his Afirccmenl by (he' Govemori
and Council of (he Stale of New Hampsliire if required (block 1.16). or upon
si^aturc by Ihc S(Mc AgciKy as shown in block 1.14 ("the Cfrcclivc Dsic"V
Cxcqil M ollterwue specifically provided herein, ikc Pn^l. inchsdini; all reporia
required by lliis Asrccnicni. shall be eomiikted in ITS eniireiyprior toiheduciu
block 1.7 (hcreiiiaflcr referred in as "(he Contpldtou Date").
CkANT AMOUNT: l.lhllTATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHKH.S;
I'AVMFAT.
Tlw Grant Amount is idcnliftcd and mrvc pariteubrly described u> I:XKI0IT C,
attached haein.
The manner of..afld sehcduteofpaymeni shitll be as .eel forth in EXHIDIT C
In aecnrdsnce vnih (he provisions se< fnlh in EXHinfT C. and in eonsidcrvltmi
i>f ihc snlisfaclnry itcrfoitiuincc of tlic I'mjecl, as determined hy Ihc State, and ax
limited by suhparasnph 5.5 of these scncrai provisions, Ihe Slate sliall pay (he
Oranlec (heGrani Amount. Tlte Slate shall vriilihold fmcn the amooni Mherwue
l>ayable lO ibe Cranlee under lliis tubparagmph 51 ihosc sums rcquiicd. or
Itcnniucd, to be n-ilhlield pursuaal lo N.H. KSA 60:7 lliroush 7-c.
The paynieut by (he S(a(e of (be Craul antowU diall be (he only, sod (he eoir^kte
l>aymeii( (o (he Grantee for all expenses, of «4uiever nature, mcuned by ilie
Cranlee in the perfdniunce hereof, and shall be Ihc only, aid the con^tkic,
compensation lo ilie Grantee for ibe Projea. The State shall have no liabilities lu
iIk Grantee other (hsii liie Gnni Amounl.
Notwithstanding anydiing in this Agreement to Ihe coiumiy. and noiwiliislaniliflC
unexpected circumstances, bi no event diall the total of all payinenls atiliiori'ecd,
or actually made, hercunda csoccd Ihc (Sntnl limkation set forth in block 1J of
tliesc scnerat provisiotts.

6. COMPUANCR MY GRAhfrEK WITH LA3VS AND KKCUIwkTIONS. In
connection with the performance of the Pioject, the Grantee sliall comply with all
sutuics, laws rcgttlaiions, ami orders of fcdcnil, state, county, or uiuniciital
Buihoriliea udiich shall impose any obligations or duly upoo iIk Cranlee, inchdiiig
(he ocquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31 -95-b.
RKCORDS and ACCOUNTS.
Dctxvcen (lie Effective Dale end (he date seven (7) years ifler the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by (he grant lerms or (he Agency, (he Grinice
shall keep detailed accounts of all expcoscs iitcumd in connection with the
fVojea, including, but not. limited to, costs of admmisiration, Irvnsponalion,
insurance, telephone calls, and elericnl maierials and services. Such accoums
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other siinibr documents.
Uctnccn the EfTcclive Date and the dale seven (7) years after the Coniplaiou
Date, unless otherwise required by tltc grant lenns or the Agency pursuant to
subparagnph 7.1, at any time dunng the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
oAcn as die State shall danand, the Grantee sliall make available to ilie State .all
records poiaining to matters covered by this Agreement. liie Cranlee shall
pennii the Stale to audit, examine, and rqvodaee such records, and lo nuke audits
of ill contracts, in>-oiccs, materials, payrolb, records of personnel, dau (as dial
term is hercinaner defined), and other information rclaiing to all matiecs Mvacd
by this Agrcenicni... ASjUSed in this paragraph,.j'tOnniM'.'i^^incMtf pcrsoris,
natural or nc(ioA^i,'aiTiii8le(l wiih', iontmliM by'or under common ownersliip
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these ptovtsions

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary lo perfcnii
iltc Project Tlw Grantee warrants lliat all peraonrw! engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Prtyeci, and ithall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Prqjeet under all applicable bws.
The Grantee sJiall not hire, and it shall not pennii any subconlreaor, sidigranlec,
or other person, firm or corporation with wliom It is engaged in aeombinedcfTon
to perfonn the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
tlw Slate, or wlw is a State' ofTicer or employee, dectcd or appointed.
The Grant Oflicer shall be the represcntativw of the Stale hcreunder. i» ihc event
of any dispute hereunder, the inlerpretation of this Agrcemaii by die Grant
OfTicer, and his/lter decision on any dispute, slialt be final.
I>ATA; HKTP.NTION OF DATAi AGGPAS.

As used in this Agreement, (he "data" dull mean all infomution and things
developed or ubtaincd during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, ih'is Agreement, including, but not limited lo, all studies, repotit, files,
formuUe, surveys, maps, charb, sourtd recordinp, video rcconjings, piaorial

■ reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, eomputa priiiiouis, notes. Icilcrs, memoranda, papa, and
docuinails. all whctlwr finished or unfinished.

9.2. I3e(wecn the Hflixtive Date and the Coniplciioii Date Ihe Grantee shall grant to
tlw Sl.itc. or any person designated by it, iinrcsirieicd access to all tbia fw
examination, dujtlicaiion, iwbliauioo, iransbtion, sale, dtS|iosai. or for any nthr
purpose whatstxva.

9.3. No datn sliall be subject to copyrigtii in ihc United States or any otha eountry by
anyone other than tlw State.

■9.4. On and afla Ihe Effective Dale all data, and any property %vhicJi lias Iwen received
from (he State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreonatl, slial! be the pro|)crty of (he State, and shall be returned to the Slate
upon danand or upon icrmtnaiioo of (lib Agreanent for any reason, wliichc\-a
.dial! first occur.

9.5. Tlie State, and anyone it stuiil designate, shall have unrestricted autlinrity to
publish, dlsclme, thsiribuic and othavnse use, in whole <w in part, nil data.

10. CONDiTiONALNATUREOR AfTRKRMRNT. Nolivithslsndinnaovihmn in
tlu's Agreement to Ihe coniraiy, all nbligaltons of Ihe Slate hercunda, itwluding,
wiihoiil liinitalinn. the continuance of paymcncs heiennda, arc conlingcnt ujvtn
the availability or coalinued appropriation nf funds, and in no'cvaii shall the Stale
be liable for any payments hercunda in exec.-cs of such avaibhic or appropriated
funds. In (lie event of a rcdiwiion or Icmiinaiion of those flinds, (he State siiali
have the riglit louillihold payment until such funds becoi'itcflvaibble,ircva, and
dull luve the right lo lermioMc lliis Agreement iiiiincdt.-itdy upon giving ilic
Grantee notice of tudi tcnninaiion.

11. EVENT OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES.
11.1. Any oiw or more of tlw foUowiagactsoromissioasoflheGranicesluiIicoRSiitute

an evau ofdefault hercunda (hcrciitafla referred to as "Events of Default"):
11.1.1 Failure lopaform tlw Frujcei snlisfaciorily^or on schedule: ur
11.1.2 Failure losubnut any report rctpitred twrcnndcr, or
11.1.3 Faiiuic to matnutn, or permit access to. tlw reconis required hcieuiKla. or
11.1.4 Failura to pafotnt any of the Ollwr covenants and conditions ofthit Agreement.
11.2. Upon iheoccunvnccofanyEvaHof Octauli, iheStatcmay Uikcsnyune. ormoru.

or all, of the folbwing oaions;
I U.I Give Ihe Grantee a written notice specifying tlw Event uf Default and requiring it

to be remedied u-iihin, hi the absence of ■ greater or lessa' spccilicaiion of lintc,
thirty QQ) days fruin the date of (he'notice: and if the Event of Default is not
limdy remedied, lerminBlcihis Agnxmeni, efTcctivelwo(2)(bysaflagiv1ng the
Grantee notice of tonninatiofl: and

11.2.2 Give Ihe Grantee a wriiien notice spmfying the Event of Default and tuspendinp
■11 payments to be made unda (his Agreement and ordering that the port'ien of t'
Grant Amonni which wonid otherwise accrue to tlw Grantee during (he peril,
from (he dale of uwh notice until such time as the State deieniiirws that the

I  Grantee has cured (he Event ofDcfauli shall cwvcr be paid to the Cranlee: and
11.2.3 Set off against any otba obligation (he State nwy owe to the Grantee any tbtnagcs

the State sufTers ^ reason of any Event of Default: and
11.2.4 Treaitheagrccmentasbretwhedandpursueanyofits remedies at bwor in equity,

a both.
12. TERMINATION.
12.1. In the event of any early termtnation of this Agrcenwni fa any reason otha dian

(he completion of the PioJect; the Grantee shall deliva to the Grant OfTica, not
later than fiAeen (IS) days aflo' the date of icmnRaiion, a rcpoit (hereinafter
rcfcired lu as the "Termination Report") describing in detail nil Project Work
pafonned. and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date oftermiRaiion.
In tlw e\-cni 'of Termtnation unda paragraphs 10 a 12.4 of tlwse general

12.2. provisions, (he approval of such a Temiiiiaiion Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receixe ilisl pottion of tlw Gram amount earned to and ineluding
the date of tcnninaiion.
In the event of Termination unda paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general

I2J. provisions, dw approral of sucli a Termination Repon by the State sliaN in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and aO litbilily Ibr damages sust.nincd or
ineuficd by the State as ■ result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
haeunda.
Notwithstanding tnytbiiig in this AgrccuiCRt to the contrary, eitha tlw State a,

12.4. -except wlwre notice default has been givoi to (he Cranlee hercunda, the Gnnicc,
I  may lemiinate (his Agreement iviihout cause upon (h'lny (30) days written noiice.
13. CONPLlCr OF INTEREST. No ofticer, member of employee of the Granicc,
I  and no representative, offwcr a etnployec of the Slate of New Hampshire a of
!  tlw governing body of the locality a localities in whidi tlw Project is to be .

perfoniwd, who exeieiscs any ftnieiions or responsibilities in dw review or
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approval of ihc undenakins or ctnyiiis owl of (udi Prejcci. chaO pailicipMe m t7.L
any dttiaion rcbiiMfi lo lW» Agrceroeni vvhkh alTecu his or her personal inicrcsl
or the imcresi of any cnn'0'"'™»- po'inership.,or associaiton in whieli he or slic
is dirccily or indirccily inicrcsted, nor shall he or she have any personal or
l>eamijiy iwcrcsi. direcl or iodirtci, in ihis Acrccmeni or U»e proceeds lltcrcof.
CUAWTF.F.'S RRI-ATIQN TO TIIR yPATK. In iIk performance of chjs
AfiTConcnl il>c Ganlcc. in onptoyccs. and anyinbconlrscuir or subBfanlcc of 10..
lite Cnuitcc are in all respects,ladcpcndciii coniracion, and arc neilher oficnti
nor employees of ihe''Siaie. Neither rite Grantee nor any of tu orTtceis,
employees, a^U. members, subconuaeiors or subfirantces. siiall liave auihoriiy
to bind lite Stale nor arc they enliikd lo any of the benerus; woricmen|s
compcnssiion or emelumenis provided by the Siaic lo Us employees. |

15. A.S5iGWMF.NT ANn SUnCONTNACI'S. lite Grantee shall not tssifin. or 19.
■otherwise iransfcr any interest in the AgreciDCnl wilhoui the prior wrillw
consent of the Sute. None of Ihc Project Work shall be subconiracied or
tub&renicd by il>e Grantee other titan as set forth in Itxhibii D wtihoul (he prior
written conaeni of the State. I

J4. INDFaMMFICATION. Tlte Gtaalcc shall defciid. irtdemnify and hold
liarmlcss the Stite.riu ofTicers and employees, from and acainst any and all
t^tfs tufTered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all cbirre,
liabililics or penalties asserted l^insi lite Stale, its officers and employees, by 21.
or on behoir of any person, oo necounl of. based on, rcsuliinc from, arising
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oQ the acu or emissorts of the CrtiitM
or subcortimcior. or subgmniec or other agcat of the Grantee. Nottvithstanding
the foregoing, nothing herein coiuatned shall be deemed to conslilutc a waiver
of the sovereign immunily of the Slate, ««>ich imnuaity. is hereby reserved lo

■  the Slate. TliU covenant shall survive ihe terminalion of Ihis agrecmenl. 22.
17. msURANCF>.
17.1 The Granlcc shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or sncul 23.

requite any subcontroctor, subgranlec or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and mainiaiii in' force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
iruursncc: I

I7.'l.l Stslotory workers' eompcnsaiibn and cmplo)«o Ibbility insuftnec for all 24.
employees engaged in the iieHbrmance of il>e Project, and i

17.1.2 General liebilily insurance against all cbims ofbc^ily injuries, death or properly
damage, in amormts not less than 51 WJ.OOO per occurrence and 52,000,000
aggRgale forbodily injury or death any one Incidem. and 5SOO.OOO for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in $ob|«nigrapb 17.1 ofihis paragraph sitall be the standard
form employed in the State nf Nov Hampshire, issued by underwriters ncccpinble
to tlte Stale, and auihorired to do business in die State of New Hampdiire. Oriniee
shall furnish to the State, cerrificates of insurance for'all reiicwal(s) of insurance
required under this Agrccmeiu no later dum icn (lO) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVP.R GF flHF.ACH. No failure by the State to aiforcc any provisions
iKieof afia any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with itg.ird
to tliati£vcnt,or any subsequent Kvent. Nocxpress waivcrof any Event ofDcfault
shall be dcemctl a waiver nf any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall bc'deemed a waiver of the rigltl of lite State to enfoioc ciielt and all of the
provisions hereof upon nny (bithcr or other default on the part of the Cmntce.
NOTICK. Any notice by a party Itercto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at Uk lime of mailing by txitined mail, postage
propaid. in a United States Post OfTtce addressed to (he parties at the oddresscs
first above given.
AMFJS'PMFJtlT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or tllschorgcd only

• by an tnsinuneni in writing signed by the parties hereto a«»d only after ai>proval of
such anteiidmenl, waiver or discltarge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampsliire. if required or by the signing Slate Agency. ■,
CON«rrRUCTiON OF ACRP.P.'mf:J4T and TKKMS. TIlis Agrceritent sltall
be eortsirued in accordance with Ihe law of ihc State of New Hampshire, artd is .
binding upon and inures to the benefit of Ihc parties aitd their rcqsectivc successors
and assignees. The eaptiofls and contents of llie "subjM" blank ive used only as
a mAtierofcohvaiicncc. and are not lo be considered a part ofthb Agiecmcni or
to be used in determining ihe intehd of the parties hcrcta
THIRD PARTIES. Tlie parties hcmo do not intend to botefil any tliird parties
and tliis Agrocmcni shall not be construed to confer any such bcncfil.
ENTIRE AGRP.EMRNT. lliis Agreement, which may be ejtcculed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire

•^agreement and understanding bettwcn the panics, and supeaedei all prior
agreements and understandings rebting hereto.
SPECIAL rkOVISIONS. The addiliontJ or modifyirig provisions scl forth iii
lixhibil A liercto arc incorporsied as part of ttib agreement. \
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CHESHIR COUNTY

EXHIBITS TO CONTIOVCT
I

I

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget'

Ceilificate of Good Standing Exemption

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances
(  I

FTA Master Agreement

2CFRPart200 j
FTA Section 5310
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County of Cheshire
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

•' I
A.l. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the rolloning:

2.1. TIw Grantee may cliangc services as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
"Sei'vices") only widi the prior written agreement of tlie State and in accordance with applicable
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) r^uircmcnts.

I

A.2. Atnend C-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding (he fuUoving:

3.1'. Services may extend to adjacent slates vviih prior written approval from lite Slate. Tlie Slate
resei^es the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section S. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

-PAYMENT" by adding the follpwing; j
5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to (he Grantee

shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus-80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, adininislralive and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and 'document Utc availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. In the event lliat revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account wiUtin 30 days of tlie Completion
Date and made available to the State upo" |leirim"l.

5.8. Tlie Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on'a form specified by the Slate on a
monthly or quailcrly basis, (ogcllicr with all Information to support the request Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
(he State.

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment, llie State shall review (lie request to determine the
allowabllity of costs. In conifection with tliis review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and oilier documents and records required
by the State, the Stale shall determine (he allowabllity of costs and (he amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to oUier provisions of this Agreement.

5.1 1'.

A.4,

6.

Final Payment. Tlic Grantee's provision
condition precedent to final payment.

of all reports required under this Agreement is a

Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

TIte, Grantee shall post In conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting foitli the prdvisions of tlic Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2.' riie Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed.
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scxfor iintioiial origin.

6.3. Tlie provisions of 2 CFR 200 shaii apply to local adminisu-alion of (hi.s agrccinciU and any
subgranlce under (his agreement.

A.5. Aiiicud G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. Tlic Termination Report must be approved by (he Stale and (he Federal Transit Adininislration
(FTA) prior to final payment. i

I  '

12.6. Completion of Services; Payihcnt of Price.' Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
(he (erms of (Iris Agreement, do not expire on tiie Completion Dale, upon (he completion of the
Services and upon payment of die Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall cease and neither parly shall have further rcconrsc under the Agreement.

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; I2ETENT10N OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding (he
following:

9.6. Ttie following restrictions apply to all subject data fii^i produced in the performance of tliis
Agreement: j

■  I ^
9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in

whole or in part, or in any manner or forin, nor may the Grantee audiorize otJiers to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FT A may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public. \

9.6.2 .As authorized by i.CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royaliy-frcc, non-cxcluslvc and
iirevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to
list:, for FcilerMl |iiir|M>.<(c.s; any wttrk develo{>ed under a grant, C4X)|>eraltve agreement,
sub-grnnt, or third paity grant, irrcspcctivc ofwhcthcrc copyright has been obtained; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. (t is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass iraiisponalion knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition lo the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, (he FTA
may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee or subgrantee its license in the copyright
to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data ftrst produced under tiiis
Agreement. , j

9.8. Tlic Grantee shall indemnify, save, and holL hamilcss the State and United Stales, tlieir officers,
agents, and einployccs'ncting within thejscope of (heir official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting froni any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right.of privacy, arising out of tlie publication, translation, reproduction,
delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license lo (he United States uridcrany patent or be
conslnied as affecting (he scope of any license or otirer right otherwise granted to die United
States under any patent: {

I

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are.not applicable (d ihaterial furnlsiied to the Grantee by die
State or United Stales and inccrpoiated in the work furnished under (he agreement; provided that
such incorporated material is identified by die Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.
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9.!

A.7.

15.

A.8.

25.

A.9.

26.

26.1.

26.2.

ill Che evcnl ihAt ihc project is not completed for aity rcason» all data developed tinder the project
shail become subject Data as defined In Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or (he f^A
may direct. ' •

Amend G-1 Section J5. "ASSXGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" liy adding the following:

TIte Grantee shall cause the provisions of this gi ant to be inserted in all subgranls for any work
- covered by this Agreement so tlial ti>c provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or i-aw materials. Hie Gitinlee shall take such action with respca to nny subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions,.including sanctions for noncompliancc.
The Grantee shall ensure lliat any subgrantee hns obtained all licenses, permits or approvals
rcquired'for Ihc performance of grant Saviccs.

I  '
Amend G"! by adding "DEFINITJONS" as Section 25:

DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are

satisfy the "requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation,

incuiTcd in tlic performance of die' Services which

Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: Tlic narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the Slate
tletailing tlie scope, of the public transportation program of (he Grant as modified and approved
by ilie State. '

REVENUE; Fai'cs from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation scr\'iccs
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgranls, contracts, purchase
of service agreements, and excess matching funds tliat directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5310: Section 5310 of llie Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act (FAST), as
amended.

STATE: The Stale of New Hampshii-c, acting through the Dcparlmcnl ofTransportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

Amend G-1 by , adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26: ^ .

ACCOUNTING, BOOICKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
I  '

Ledgers. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain ledger slieets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of Hie Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be iti a form approved by the State) The ledger will indicate the funds'remaining in each
line item of lli^Granl Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a running
basis and carried over to the following month;|tIiat is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prcpai-e and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is iiot provided witli invoices.

Accounts Receivable. Tlie Grantee and/or subgrantee shall deposit all revenue in on interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this Slate. Grantee shall pi'Cpare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Imnicdialely upon| receipt, Cinnicc and/or subgrantee shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shail establish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher'nunibcr. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State
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and shall identify cacli con>|>oneiu of every deposit All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should be attached lo the receipt voucher.

26.3. Payablcs. Grantee and/or subgrnntec shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of funds.
'I1ic voucher shall include (he following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
die State: Tlic Division and'account numbers from which the funds will be drawn, the date of

I  '
expenditure, a voucher number rtmnmg in s^ucnce, ond any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received by (he Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and nllownbility. Each invoice must be approved for payment by die
.Grant Manager or dcsigncc. Immediately upon paynicnt. Grantee and/or subgraniec shall make
entries to (he appropriate ledger sheets doctimenling payincnl. (Each subgraniec shall identify a
Gi'ant Manager). I

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall-establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running lotol of all payable leceipl vouchers. Tlie legisters will piovide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers,
abbreviations are to be used.

amount, and purpose of action. No self-designated

26.5. Cheek Register. Grantee and/or subgrnntec^ shall'maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is |K)stcd to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet,' Taxes, and Benefit. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall require each of its employees
to I) submit weekly time reports designating work peiformed and time spent on such work, or 2)
be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize time lepoits by task and apply employee's rates of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time rcpoils and cause them to be
posted to the appropriate category in the g&ieral ledger. The Grantee, shall maintain records of
employee payroll and benefits and shall post this infornmtion to the appropriate category in the
general ledger, 'flie Gmnt Manager sltall ensuie that all payments are on a timely basis.

'  \

26.7. Reimbursements. On a montlily basis, the Grantee shall submit a description ofGrant activilies,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. Tlie Grantee shall
agree to provide Information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State including
but not limited to a final or (cnninalion report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintcimnce of Records. Tl>e Grantee shall keep and maintain tlie records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to (he Stait and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from tlie public. In (he event Ihe-State disputes the Grantee's operations or

I  jccords as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall.rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the EfTectiye Date and the Completion Date, and for a period of
thiec (3) years after the FTA grant is closed orllic date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreanent, whichever is later, at any time during tlie Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
as tlie Slate or the ITA may demand, (he Grantee shall make available to die Slate and the FTA or
their designces ail records pertaining to matters covaod by this Agreement. Tlic Grantee shall
permit die Stale and (lie FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-1
section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters coveied by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons^ natural or notional, afTiliatcd with, controlled by, or
under common ownership with, (he entity Identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.10. Independent Audit. Tlie Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Ceitified Public Accounianl
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State niay require, for any pail of the project upon demand.
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Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for llial specific
purpose. : I '
26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the ''

Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Gmniee shall pay to the State such.sums within tliirly
(30) days oftlie audit date. j

26.1 1. The Grantee shall submit quarterly pcffomiance, drug and alcohol, and charter activityVcports
witliin 30 days of (he end of each quarter |nnd shall submit any forms, information or reports
required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Dalaba.sc(NTD) reporting.

26.12. General Tratisit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee .shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the Notional Transit
Database (NTD) as required. 'ITie Grantee shall submit related data to tl>c State upon request.

A.10. Amend G-l by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL
apply to all equipment and real property
through this or otiicr Agreements between

PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
the State and the Gmntee:

. 27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the Slate unless the Grantee has.received prior approval from
the Slate to procure vehicles.

27.3. All other equipment with, a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Gmnlcc subject to the prior approval of the Stale.I  I

27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee sitall be in the name
of the Grantee; provided, however, ihnt the. Grantee shall give die State a .security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, tlie Grantee shall give die
State'a security interest in die motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary lo protect die Stale's security interest, including taking steps to identify die Slate as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

. 27.5. In the event that Uiis Agreement is terminated, all project cquipmcnl^and property become die
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
traiisfcncd to the State as soon as feasible.[Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040. IG and the Slate Ma'nagaiient Plan unless written approval is received.'

A.II. Amend G-l by adding "^EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a currciu'liivcntory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Propert>' involved in this Agroenient. The Gmntec shall submit
to the State a certification that the Project Equipment and Real Property as rofcrcnccd in Section
27, is still being used in accordance with die terms of the Agreement. Tlic inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to the State on an annual basis beginning June 30,2024.

i  <.
A.12. Amend G-l by adding "TRAININC AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:
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32. TRAINING AND DIUVEU REVIEW. [Flic State may require participolioii in Jrnining courses
dctcnuincd (o be essential to FTA program inanngciucnt in Uiis grant period and may require
participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of lite public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher tinining every tijrcc (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the Stale shall have the right to review the performance of all drivers who ard
employed in connection with tliis Agreement, atid to disallow the use of any driver whose
perfomiance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by (he State.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUfREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department ofSafcty and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vdticle Safely
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by die United Stales
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire [Apartment of Safety under RSA
266:72-a, in the purchase and operation ofj all project equipment

33.1. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vehicle used in its Services. In addition, the Grantee shall be

•  responsible.to report any accident in compliance will) State law.

33.2. Tlic Grantee shall submit to the State by February 15. pf cadi year a report covering the
previous year (January I through December 31), summarizing die results^of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655. i .

.33.3. .Tlie Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public .Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance puiposcs.

A.14. Amend G-J by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS".as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Grantee shall not engage in the provision Services other dion
those described in Exhibit 6, or outside the service area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the State and, as appiicable, witlioiit obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. Tlie Grantee shall not engage in' charter or school bus operations except as pcmiiltcd

■  by 49 CFR Pai^ 604 and 605, i-cspcclivdy.

A.IS. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. Tlie Grantee warrants that widi respect to.die Sci vices to
be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals vvhich are required by any law,
order or regulation of any aiitlVority, istti'tc or federal, or which may be necessary "for the
performance of'tlie Ser\'iccs hcreundcr. The Grantee wan-ants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and audiorized
to pcrfonii such Services under all applicable laws.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. Tlic Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of die Unified
Pi-oiectivc Arraiigenient, Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the prolccllon of the employees of any employer providing transportation .seivices assisted by
this Agreement, and the employees of 'any other surface transportation providers In the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.



Hcvisc-d 04/18/2023

A.I7. AmciidC-l by :i(ldiiig "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If nny iiwenlion, improvcnienl, or discovery of iIk: Granlcc i.s conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in (lie course of or under this grant, whici) iiiveniion,
improvement or discovery may be ijatcntabic under (he laws of the United States or any foreign
country, the Gmntee shall iniinediately notify tJte State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and (lie Stale with respect to sucli invention, in)provement, or
discoveiy will'be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof. ! • ̂

A.I8. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or pei-son; other than a bona-fide employee woi"king solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
pci'son, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Gmntec, any fee, commission,.
percentage, brokerage fee, gills or any oUier consideration; contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this AgreentcnL For bieach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or considemtion, or otherwise rccovcj-, the full amount of such fee, commissipn,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, giftj or contingent fee.

I  .



CHESHIRE COUNTY

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Graalee, County of Cheshire, New Hampshire, (hereinafter the "Grantee") will
provide transportation services as described in its Federal Transit Administialion
(FTA) Section 5310 Enhanced Mobili^ of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) grant application to the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit (hereinafter "the State").

2. The Grantee will sej*vc as tlic lead agency for Region 5 Cheshirc-Monadnock for FTA
Section 5310 RCC funds to provide accessible ti ansporialion services to seniors and
individuals with disabilities in cooperation with the Region 5 Cheshirc-Monadnock
RCC. This project is for the period July 1,2023 - June 30,2025. The Grantee's giant
application is hereby incorporated by reference and made part of this agrccriient-The
Grantee agrees to provide all services indicated in the grant application unless modified
per this agreement. I

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the FTA Section 53 lO-funded
services for seniors and individuals widi disabilities provided by Grantee pursuant to
tliis agreement:

a. Tlic Slate may require the Grantee to provide additional transpoilation sci"viccs or to
reduce tran.'Tirirtation cervices provided under this grant. Any alterations to such
transportation services shall be subntittcd in writing by the State to the Grantee. The
Cji-anlee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different
timeframc is agreed to by the State and die Grantee.

b. Mobility management activities, and ̂as applicable, transportation sei'vices,
subgrantees, and maximum reimbursement rates, shall consist of tliose submitted in
the Grantee's 5310 Regional Coordinating Council (RCC) application or as
subsequently modiiled by die Staic'thrcugh written notification to die Grantee...
Further amendments to mobility managenient activities, transportation services,
subgrantees, and/or maximum rciinburscnieni rales require RCC approval, as
documented in official minutes, as well as written approval from the State.

c. Eligible Regional Mobility Manager expenses shall be liniited to Uiose directly
related to the position's role as described within the 2016 "New Hampshire Statewide
Coordination of Comhiunity Transportation Services Plan" and/or within the most
recent "New Hampshire Statewide Mobilit)' Manager Network: A Blueprint for
Implementation", both hereby incorporated by reference. Roles may be furdicr
modified based on those recommended by the Statewide Coordinating Council (SCO)
and approved in writing by die Slate.'



d. All services provided shall conform loFTA Section 5310 guidelines. PcrPTA
requirements, the Grantee shall be responsible for oversight of subgiantees andcontractors relative to FTA requirenijents.

c. The Grantee shall ensure the provision of ADA-acccssible services within the ROC
region. Any mai-keting materials, brochures, and other service information shall
describe it as ADA-accessible. It i.s acceptable for a subgrantee/lower tier subrecipienl
that docs not utilize accessible vciiicles to grant witli an accessible provider in order
to meet this requirement.

r. The Grantee must fulfill its contractual obligations and provide its scope of services
throughout the grant period regardless of expenses exceeding the maximum allowed
to be reimbursed. As necessary, the Grantee shall establish trip priorities to ensure
funds are not expended prematurely. I

I,

g, Tlie State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services^or to
reduce transportation services provided under this grant Any alterations to such

. icanspoitation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to tlic Grantee. The
Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless another
timcframc is agreed to by the Slate and the Grantee.



CHESHIRE COUNTY

EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

Tlic Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 (Df the General Provisions, arc the FfA Section
5310 portion of the eligible project costs. Federal (FTA) Funds are granted as follows;

, SFY 2024 SFY 2025 '

FTA Section 5310 1
•

Cheshire Count>' 1
Conti'acted Services ' $181,909 $181,909

Mobility Management Activities 1 $52,441 $52,441

Regional Mobility Manager Position 1 $10,950 $10,950

Total FTA Section 5310 Eunds i $245,300 $245,300

1

Total Two-Ycar Grant Funds ! $490,600

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

II. Not less than fourteen days prioj* to the submission of the Grantee's firat lequest for
reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit to the State a budget.incorporaling all funds to be
expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract. Budget I'evisions'may be
made with written approval of the State. Unless otherwise advised .by State, budget
revisions may only request the transfer of funds within a category or between categorieswith the same matching ratio. , j

III. The Grantee may seek rcimbojsement for these funds by submitting a monthly or quarterly
invoice for die total eiigible expenses, less agency match as applicable to State. The invoice
must include verification of source(s) of matching funds and statements from service
providers, as applicable, to supi>ort the request for matching funds.

j

IV. Mobility management costs shall be itemized and include such information as required to
support the request.

V. The Grantee will verify diat reimbursement is for non-Mcdicaid-ellgible trips only.

VI. For expenses odier than contracted services, unless written approval is received from Slate,
the Grantee may seek roimburscmcnt only for eligible expenses listed in the budget and'
detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with the exception of funds specifically reserved.
If any, and identified in "Specificaliy Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.

VII. At the sole discretion of the State, the Grantee inay cany foi*ward any unexpended portion
of the federal funds included in the Grant Price to a subsequent Grant, if any, between the
Stale and the Grantee.



County of Cheshire, New Hampshire

EXHIBIT,C

SPECIAL PROVISION

County of Cheshire, New Hampshire is not required to have a Certificate of Good
Standing because they are a "political subdivision" under RSA 5:18-a.
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County of Cheshire
12 C<)ut1 SIi%:c1, Kcciic, NH flSHvil

mnv.co.clicshirc.uh.iis

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Ten v M. Clark. Cheshire County Contmissioncr Clerk, do hereby ceilify that 1 am a duly
elected Officer of the County of Cheshire. I hemby certify the following is a line copy of a vote
taken at a meeting of the Commissionei's of the County of Cheshire duly called and held on 26
April 2023 at which a quonirii of the Commissioners were pi esent and voting.

I

VOTED: That Commissioner Chair John "Jack" G. Wozmak. J.D. or County Administrator

Christopher C. Coatcs are hereby authorized on behalf of the County of Cheshire to enter into the
FTA Section 5310 (Combincdl RCC Progrem grant agreement with State of New Hampshire
Department oFTranspoitation and to execute anjj and all documents, agreements and otlier
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem
necessaiy, desirable, or appropriate to effect the purpose of this vote.

VOTED: That County Administrator Clu istopher C. Coates is hereby authorized on behalf of the
County of Cheshire to enter into .any contractual agreements; including, but not limited to vendor
subcontracts, subrecipient agreements, and/or memorandums of understandings; as necessary to
carry out the goals, objectives, and activities of the agreement.

f

VOTED: Thai Grants Manager Suzanne Banslev is hereby appointed as the authorized certifying
official and primary contact and liaison with regards to the above referenced agreement and is
hereby authorized on behalf of the County of Cheshire to certify or sigp vouchers or requisitions
for payments or claims to the agreement.

1 hereby certify that the foregoing resolution has not been amended or repealed and remains in
full force and effect as of the date of the execution of this document. I further certify that it is
understood that tlic State of New Hampshire wili|reiy on this certificate as evidence that the
person listed above currently occupies the positibn indicated and that they have full autliorily to
bind the Municipality. This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from tlie dat^f tliis
certificate.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Cheshire

mifiissiorier^erk, Terry M. Clark

The forgoing instiument was acknowledged befofe.me this 26"* day of April. 2023 by Terry M.
Clark.

Rodney Bouchard, Justice of the Peace
Commission Expires: 4/8/2025

Area Code 603 I PoQe 1 of l
• County Comntfssionert 352-«2lS/Fax 3SS-3026 • fteQlttrv of Oecdt 3S2-040VFax 3S2-767e • Finance Oeponment 355-0} WFsx 3S5-3000 • 12 Court
Street. Keene, NK 03431 • County SAerirr 3S2-4238/Fax 3SS-3020 • County Attorney 3S2-OOS6/Fax 355-3012 - 12 Court Street, Keene; NH'0343i •
Alternative Sentencing/HeMal HeaiU> Court 3SS-0)60/Fax 355-0159 • 265 Washington St. Keene N.H. * Ocpartmcnt of.Corrections 825 HanOoro Street
Keene, 034 31 • 903-l60(Vfax 352-4044 • Maplewoed Nurttng Home AAssW^ Uving 399-4912/Fax 399-.700S • TTY Access 1-600-735-2964 • FaclOOes
399-7300/Fa* 399-7357 • Human Resources 399-7317/399-7378 • Grants O^rtment 35S-3023/Fa* 3SS-3000



Primex"
NH Pubfc Kill Monpgcmtm Cxchang* CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire PuWic Risk Management Exchange (Primex^) is organized urvJer the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-8.
''ooled Risk Management Programs, in accordance with those statutes. Its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex* is authorized to provide pooled risk
lanagement programs established tor the benefit of pdlticai subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex* is crUlOed to the categories of coverage set forth bdow. In addition, Primex* may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member Is subject to ali of the terms, conditions, exclusions,' amendments, rules, policies and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Primex*. Including but rwt .limited to ̂  final and twnding resoiiAlon of ad daims and coverage disputes before the
Primex* Board of Trustees. The AddiliortaJ Covered Party's pw occurren^ Emil' shoil be deemed irKluded in the Member's per occurrerice limit, and
therefore shell reduce the Member's limit of UabOily as set forth by the Coverage Documents and DedaraOons. The 8mii shovm may have been reduced
by daims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury UabDity) arid Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Pubdc CWOdals Errors and Omissions). 0 (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Uabflity Claims-Made Coverage) are wduded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good stand'ing of the New Harnpshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actlorrs of Primex*. As of the date this cer^ficate is issued, the Information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established tor the current coverage year.

This Certificate Is Issued as a matter of Information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend. exterxJ, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below. { i

PmrtidfMting kttmber UtmUf-Ntjmbf:

Cheshire County 601
12 Court Street

1st Root • Room 171

Keene. NH 03431

Company Mofding Covsrape:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange • Primex'
Bow Brook Place

46 OoTMSvan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624

Dj're' •'

' -1" fmnvlEfdiVwv); - •
,'Lto^'fNKStattJto^ May'i/^ply '!"

X General Liability (Occurrence Forin)
Professional Liability (describe)

□ Sir □ 0==-"^

MAnM-x 1/1/2024
1

Each Occurrence S 1.000.000

'

General Aqgregale $ 2.000.000
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

•

• Med Exp (Any orre person)

Automobile Liability 1
Deductible Comp and CoD; $1,000

Any auto

1

1

Combined Sirtgle Limit
(Earn AcddM)

Aggregate

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability Statutory

Each Acddeni

i

Disease - Earn

Disease - Pofiey lm

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire end Theft)
^'

Blanliel Lin< Rei^scemenl
Cost (unless olhenvise suited)

Description: In regard to the Grant. The certificate holder is named as Additional Covered Party, but only to the extent liability is based
on the negligence or wrongful acts of the member, its employees, agents, officials or volunteers. This coverage does not extend to others.
Any liabiiily resulting from the negligence or wrongful acts of the Additional Covered Party, or their employees, agents, contractors,
members, officers, directors or affiliates is not covered. The Participating Member will advise of cancellation no less than 15 days prior to
cancellation. . 1 '

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: | X Additional Covered Party | | Loss Payee Primex* - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: Stei T^tnuU
/

Date: 1/2S/2023 mpurceRfilnhDrlmex.cra

,  1

1
Slate of New Hampshire . • - '
Department of Transportation/ Bureau of Rail & Transit 1

Hazen Or • • j
.0 80X463Concord. NH 03302 * j v

Please direct inquires to:
Primex* Risk Management Services

603-22S-2S41 phone
603-228-3833 fax



Primex'
NH ̂Mic Itilk MoAe0«nt<it CjKtengt CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-6,
Pooled Risk Managemeru Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Tmst Agreement ar>d bytaws. Primex' is authorized to provide pooled ris'-
management programs eslabltshed ior the beneflt of political subdivisions in the Stale of New Hampshire. -

V  J' '

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition, Primex* rna'y extend the same coverage lo non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject lo all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, mles, policies and procedures
that are applicable lo the members of Piimex*. including but not limited to ̂ e fmal ar)d binding resoiuUon of an daims ar^d coverage disputes ttefore the
Primex' Board of Trustees. .The Additic^ Covered Party's per occurrence timii shall be deemed indudod in the Member's.per occurrence limit, and
therefore shaH reduce the Member's limit of liabD'cty as set forth by the Coverage Documents er>d Declarations.. The limit shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability covorago is limHed to Coverage A {Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). 0 (Unfair Employment Practices),' E,(Employee Benefit Liability) and P
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provis'ton of coverage.

The below named entity is a m^ber in good standing of the New Harnpshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revised et any time by the actions of Primex'. As of thp dale 'this cerirficate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage estabHshed for the current coverage year. /

This Certiricate is Issued as a mettar of information only and corilers no rights upon the ceftiflcate holder. This certificate does not amend, exterrd. or
alter the coverage aflorded by the coverage categories listed bdow, [

PcrtidpMng Uember: Member Numbtr

Cheshire County . 601
12 Court Street-

1st Floor - Boom 171
Keene.'NH 03431 ,

•

Cotnpeny AJtonSng Covotoge:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex'
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

Concord. NH 03301-2624
1  •

.''l .•h;' ' '. Type of Covertpsi Va-
,'.'-£ffocWvO T.'.

i v.-Vnimjwd'iwvl w.,
.'t/m/t* -;NH'Statutory Umlts|Ma'y"'App1y,yif.-N6t/^j':.

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professior\al Liability (describe)

□ sr n

1  •

•

Each Orxurrcnce

General Aggregate
Fire Damage (Any one

.fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Cdmp and Coil:

Any auto

Comt>ined Single Limit
(Estfi Aeddwc)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability
I

i/i/5n5t 1/1/2024 X  . Statutory

Each AcddenI $2,000,000 (

1

Disease - ema Enwioy«« $2,000,000

Disease - PafcyUmk >

Property (Special Risk includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Limit. Repiacsmert
Cost (urSess ethenvbe staled)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: . | | Additional Covered Party { Loss Payee Primex* - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

Qy; TtlMf Stti PmuK

Date: 1/25/2023 mourccUlStnhDrimex.orq

f

i

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Transportation ■'
7 Hazen Dr
PO Sox 483
Concord. NH 03302

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2841 phone
. 603-228-3833 fax



Ccrtificatiojis and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA
assistance programs

I  ̂
' (Signature pages altcmaic to providing Gcrtifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant; . County of Cheshire. NH | .

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) _

Or,
I

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category

01 Ccnifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safely PI: ns

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program
I

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs

Certiflcadon



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State ofGood Repair Grants l

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs !

15 * Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Finahcing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certificalibn for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations !

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCFS StCNATURF. PACK

1
AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

N.mc of Ihc AppUcani: County of Cheshire. NH

DY SICNtNC BELOW, on bdialf of ihc Applkam, I declare ihoi it has duly autKorircd me lo makc.thcsc
Certificpiions and Assurances and bind Its compliance. TIjus, ii agrees to comp^ly with all federal liu-s,-regulations.
arKl requircmcnu. follow appllcablc federal guidance, and comply with ibc Ccrtificaiions and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each applicatibo its Authorized Representative makes lo the Federal
Traruit Administration (FTA) in the fcdcn! fiscal year, irrespective of whether the itidividual that acted on his or
her Applicant's bchulfcontinues to reprcsem it. . j

Tlic Cerlificallons and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award.fur wliich it now seeks, or may
later sf^ federal assistance to be swarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The Applicant affirms tlie truthfulness and accuracy of the Certifications and Assurances it has selected in Utc
statements submiUcd with this document and any other submi.«ion made to FTA. and tctatowJcdges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Actof 1986, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 er re?., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies,*' 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to nny|certification, assurance, or submission made io
connection wilh a fctieral public iransporuiion program authori^ by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assxirances Fiscal Year 2023

In signing this document,! decltre under penalties ofpcjjury llutihc foregoing Ceriincations tnd Assurances, and
any other statcmcnti made by me on behalf of Uk Applicant are.tnie and accurate.

Signature Dale:

Name Couoly CofnmlsSionCf Chair John G. "Jack" Wozfnak . Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds.jThe language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NRDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NITIDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement..

County of Cheshire. NH

Name of Agency

JohnG. "Jack" Wozmak.JD

Name of Authorized Official

Date

ign



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement . Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement
I
I  ■ ■

Name ofAwar/iing Agency: Federal TrnnsU Adnnnistration (FTA)

Name ofRecipient Agency: New Hampshire I^eparinient of Transportation (NHDOT)
Name of Snbrecipient/Contracting Agency: Oieshire County

Cheshire Conntv shall comply with all applicable federal Jaws, regulations, and lequireinenis as
outlined in tlic most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal
Certifications and Assuraitces. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as
follows: ' i

I  ' ■ •

FTA award nroiect dcscril)tion: (as reijulredto be responsive to (he Feilerat Finnflng Aeeonntnbllity nnd
Trnnspareiiey Act (FFATA) /

Amount: $490,600'
I  •

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.513
FTA Award Name; FTA SECTION 5310 RCC|PROGRAM APPLICATIONS
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): TBD

Federal Award Dale: TBD. I

j

Contact information forsuh-nwarding official:

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Ejnail: Micltelle.L.Winlers@dot.nh.gov Phone:
Is this awaitl for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

603-271-2449

Subrccinicnt/Contractor Information:

Subrecipicnt/ContractorNaine: Cheshire County
Subrccipient/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.: RX31FLVKIIVY3

Name of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: John 0. "Jack" Wozmak
Title of authorizing subrecipicnt/contraciing official: Chair County Commissioners ^
Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances; Yes
Subrccipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: De Minimis
(An approvedfederally rcco^izcd indirect^os! rate, negotjased between the subrecipient/eontraetor and the Federal
Coverntnent or. ifno such rate exists, either a rate negotidfed between the pass-through entity and the subreci'pient
(in eotnpfionce with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.4N Indirect: (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)).- I , ^

/  • ! .
Subawai d Period of ncrfonnancc:

Start Date: 7/1/23 . End Date: 6/30/25



FTAand 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-nward obligntcd bv this action (comracf/ainenitmeiiO:

For FFY: 2024 Seclion: 5310 RCC. Amount: $490,600

i  . . ;
Total amount of.FTA'sub-award committed to tltc subreciuien! forieinnicontmci A /tinendmeuisy. ■ I

For FFY: 2024 Section: hlO RCC Amount: $490,600

Pass-through requirements:

Tlic Subrccipicnt/Contracior, Cheshire Comity agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the
pass-tlirough entity (NHDOT) on the subrccipient so that the Federal award is used in
accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the-Federal award.

The SubreciDient/Contractor. C/ies/i/fg County agrees to any additional requirements that the
pass-tlirough entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrccipient in order for the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the
Federal awarding agency (ITA) including identification of any required financial and
performance reports. • i

i

The Subrccipient/Contractor, Cheshire Comity agrees to permit tlic pass-through entity
(NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as
necessary for tlie pass-through entity to meet the| requirements of this pait; and appropriate terms
and conditions concerning closcout of the subaNyard.

I

Date: 04/26/2023 . !

Name of authorizing subrecipicnt/contracting official: Chris Coates

'Title of authorizing subrecipienl/conlracting official: County Admini^t^tpr

Signatui e of Authorizing subrecipienl/conlracting official:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of (Eommissioncrs

County of Cheshire, New Hampshire

I  «

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatioh'of the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire (the
County), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and^ihe related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents! '

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of.Chcshirc, New Hampshire, as of December 31, 2021, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in'
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with

States of America and the standards applicable to'

auditing standards generally accepted in the United
financial audits contained in Governmcnl Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gencral of the United States. Our responsibilities'under those
standards arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County and. to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we.have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Financial Statements
\

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that arc free from material mis'siatcment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whcdier there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County's ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

!

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
arc free from material misstatement, whether due lojfraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high' level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and



therefore is not a. guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Governmenl Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as.fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements arc considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, wc: ' \

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and as.scss the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. |

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County's internal coniro . Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. »

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by. management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
.financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about' the County's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time. . j

We are required to communicate with-those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary wmparison information, schedule of changes in the
County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, schedule of County OPEB contributions, schedule
of changes in the County's total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of changes in the County's
proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of County pension contributions on pages i-x
and 39-46 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and', although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmcnta!
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Wc have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries,.the basic financial statements, and other knowledge wc obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on ihe-infonnalion
-because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance. . ' i



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements/The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Pan 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and rclaics directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Tlte information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly staled,' in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Stmtdards, wc have also issued our report dated May 17.
2022 on our consideration of the County's internal t^ntrol over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other maticre.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and thc rcsults of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County of
Cheshire, New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
May 17,2022



CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
MANAGEMENT'S D SCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of Cheshire County|'s financial performance provides an overview of the
County's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the County's financial performance as a whole.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for 2021 are as follows:
I

•  The County's net position for year-end was S24,762,139 an increase of $8,653,098
which represents a 53.72% increase over the 2020 net position of $16,109,041. The
major increase is due to ARPA funds that are being invested in capital assets as well'
as in increase in the Counties self-funded insurance plan.

•  At the end of the current year, the County's governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of S2!,?23,007 an increase of $4,415,767- from the prior year
balance of $17,407,240. Of this amount, $15,888,316 is available for spending
(unassigned). j

At the end of the current year,
$15,888,316, which represents
$12,098,539.

unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
a 31.32% increase from the prior year balance of

Overview of the Financial Statements ^
This annual report consists of a scries of financial statements. These statements arc organized so the
reader, can understand the County as a financial whole or as an entire operating entity. The statements
also provide a detailed look at specific financial conditions.

The County's basic financial statements arc comprised of three components:
j

1. Government-wide financial statements

2. Fund financial statements

3. Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary in1
themselves.

ormation in addition to (he basic financial statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

Statement of Net Position and Statement of activities

The statement of net position presents information on all of the County's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the balance reported as net.position. The
statement of activities presents Information showing how the County's net position changed during
the current year. These sialcmcnls arc prepared using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the
accounting method used by private sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into
consideration all of the current year's revenues and expenses, regardless of when the cash is received
or paid.



CHESHIRE COUNjTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The change in ncl position is important because jit tells the reader whether, for the County as a whole,
the financial position of (he County has improved or diminished. However, In evaluating the overall
position of the County, non-financial information such as changes in the County's tax base and the
condition of the County's capital assets will also need to be evaluated.

In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, the County is presented as one activity;

•  Governmental Activities—All of the County's programs and services are reported here,
including General Government, Public Safety. Human Serviccs/Medicaid Expenses. Assisted
Living Facility, Conservation and Economic Development as well as the County Nursing
Home. Tiiese services arc funded primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
including federal and stale grants and| other shared revenues. The Nursing Home docs
generate revenue in charges for services but does require funding by taxes as well.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain controls over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objects: The County, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate' compliance with finance related legal requirements.
The funds of Cheshire County can be divided into three categories: governmental fUnds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund financial statements provide detailed information about (he
County's major funds. Based on the restriction on the use of moneys, the County has established
many funds that account for the multitude of scrjviccs provided to our residents. In 2021, the County
has determined the General Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Fund to be major govemmental
funds.

t

Governmental Funds—Governmental funds arc used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as govemmental activities on the gojycmmcnt wide financial statements. Most of the
County's basic services arc reported in these funds that focus on how money flows into and out of the
funds and the year-end balances available for spending. These funds are reported on the modified
accrual basis of accounting that measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily
convened to cash. The govemmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
County's general government operations and the basic services being provided, along^wiih the
financial resources available.

'  \

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the govcmmcnt-wide financial
statements, it is usefuf to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities on the government wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term effect of; the government's short term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide .a reconciliation to facilitate the
comparison between govcmmcnlal funds and govemmental activities.

The County maintains a multitude of individual govcmmcnlal funds. Inrormalion Is presented
separately on the govcmrncnlal fund balance sheet and on the governmental fund" statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major funds, identified earlier as the
General Fund and ARPA Fund. Data from the other governmental funds, which Includes Hcmcnway
Fund, Deeds Surcharge, SherifTs Forfeiture Fund and Civil Processing, Jail Canteen, Court House



CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
I
(

Restoration Fund, CDBG Fund, Opiate Thjsi Fund, Maplewood Capital Fund, Energy Upgrade andGrant Funds arc combined into a single, aggrcg^ed prcsciilatioh.
Proprietary Funds—^The County has one proprietary fiind. The County uses an .internal service fund
for its sclf-fundcd Health and Qcntal insurance account.

Fiduciary Funds—Fiduciary funds arc used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the County. Fiduciary funds are not reflected on the government-wide financial statements
because the resources from those funds arc not .'available to support the County's programs. The
accounting method used for fiduciary funds is] much like that used for the proprietary funds. The
County's custodial funds account,for the Registry of Deeds, Nursing Home Resident Funds and the
Jail Inmate funds. |
Notes to the Financial.Statements—The notes provide additional information that 'is essential to
gaining a full understanding of the data providcd^on the govemment-wide and fund financial
statements.

/

Other Information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report presents the General Fund's actual revenues and expenditures as compared to the legally
adopted budget. " '

Government-Wide Financial analysis '
The table below provides a summary of the County's net position for the year ended December 31,
2021 compared with 2020. I

County assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $24,762,139 as of December 31, 2C
from 2020.

'21. This is an increase in net.position, of $8,653,098

Cheshire County, New Hampshire Net Posiiion
As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020

Governmental Activities

2021 2020

Current and Other Assets

Dirccl Financing Lease A/R

Note Receivable

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Loss on debt refunding
Dcf outflow OBEB Liab

Dcf Outflows Net Pension Liab

Total DeTcrrcd Outflows

Current Liabilities

Non current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

33.601,159

0

0

72.791.998

S i 06.393.157

36'l.445
645,793

3.690.936

12,856.318

•' 66.543.095

S  79.399.4)3

$  25,923.074

0

0

73.009.074

S 98.932.148

491.724

803,192

S  7.364.139

10,603,162

77.098.323

S  87.701.485



CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE

MANAGEMENT'S I>ISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

!

Cheshire County, New Hampshire Net Position
As of December 31. 2021 and December 31, 2020

Governmental Activities

2021 2020

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Def Inflow finance lease

Def Inflow OBEB Liab

Def Inflow Net Pension Liab

Total Deferred Inflows

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position

0

472.394

6.4Sr38S

S  6.929.779

28.495.685

45^250
f4.1911796)

24 762 139

$  6,305

599.270

I-88Q.I86

S  ' 2.485.761

26.476,198

402,187

Total net position is presented in three categories: net investment in capital assets, restricted 'and
unrestricted. I

1

*  I

The largest portion of the County's net position is related to capital assets (e.g., land and
improvements, buildings and building improvements, .machinery and equipment, vehicles, and
infrastructure). The figure presented. $28,495,685, is net of any related debt iricurred to acquire those
assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. 1

An additional portion of the County's net position, $458,250, represents resources that.are subject to
restrictions on how. ihcy can be used. For Cheshire County, those restrictions include those related to*
limitations imposed by statutes governed by the State of New Hampshire, grants and restricted
donations. I

I

The remaining portion (-$4,191,796) resulted in an increase of $6,577,548 over 2020 of
(-$10,769,344). I

The next statement provided shows the changes in the net position for 2020 and 2021.

Cheshire County, Changes In Net Position

Governmental Activities

2021 2020

Revenues:

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contribuiions
Capital Grants and
Contributions

Tola! Program Revenues

General Revenues

Property Taxes

Interest and Investment

$ 15.^53.275
I4.883;785

I

713.794

31.550.854

28.7|I8.37I
:29.848

•$ 13,361,961

11.959,895

270.07 J

25.591.927

28.718.371

126.143

- IV -
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Qlhcr. 1.058,937

Loss on disposal of Asscl . (30.0061

Tola! General Revenue and Loss on |
Disjrasal of Asset 29.777.150

Tola! Revenues 61.328.004

Expenses:
General Government 6,702,164

Public Safety 9.069.447

Human Services 14,589,215

Conservation j 60,484
Economic Development * 889,344
Interest and ftscal charges / 1,366,323
Cheshire County Nursing Home 19.997.929

Total Expenses 52.674.906
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 8 653.098

Net position - beginning S 16.109.041
I

Net position - ending S 24.762.139

990.754

f??.629)

29.801.639

55.393.566

7,038,421

10,157,229

1 1.705.503

67,671

423.488

1,609,976

21.520.235

52.522.523

S2 871 043

S 13.237.993

i; t6 109 041

Governmental Activities \
Charges to users of govcmmcn'tal services made up $15,953,275 or 26.01% of toial govemmcnl
revenues and include such services as provided by the Nursing Home, ShcrifTs Department,
Department of Corrections, Registry of Deeds, Assisted Living Apartments and Connected Families.
Additionally, the County receives revenue from operating grants and other con^butions. In 2021,
this totaled $14,883,785 or 24.27% of total government revenue. Operating grants are used to fund
expenses associated with programs such as ihcjDomcslic Violence Prosecutor, the Victim Witness
Program and the Regional Prosecutor Program, Drug Court and Connected Families. Other
contributions included in the amount | are'' grants for Public Health initiatives
as well as Pro Share Funds and MQIP receipts to support Maplewood Nursing Home.

In 2021, the County was the recipient of COVID funding from the Cares Act as well as an indirect
allocation of COVID funding from the Slate of New Hampshire. Additionally, Cheshire County
received a direct allocation of American Rescue Plan Funds. The major impact in the operating
grants and contributions is aiyibuted to the ARPA- funds received and allocated in 2021.

Property lax revenues are the County's largest |rcvcnue, accounting for $28,718,371 or 46.83% of
total government revenues. As noted previously, the County is able to recover some of its expenses
through user charges, however, a great deaLo|f County operations do not have revenue sources
sufTicicnt or available to meet their expenses and as a result arc funded by Property Taxes.1  \
One of the largest expenses funded through the assessment of taxes is associated with the obligation
towards the Human Service Mcdicaid Expenses. This area is responsible for paying the County's
share of funding for those Cheshire.County residents' needing Medicaid assistance. As of July I,
2008, the County took on 100% of the non-federal share for residents in Long Term Care Facilities
and for County residents receiving their care at home (Choices for Independence)! As a result, the
Slate of New Hampshire took over 100% of the non-federal share of'the other programs which
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1

included Board and Care of Children, Old Age Assistance, Aide to the Permanently and Totally
Disabled and Provider Services. As the cost of these programs outweigh the cost of the LTC and
Home Care programs, there was a "Hold Harmless" provision included in the statute that protected
the Counties from being exposed to additional expenditures above normal inflationary rates for Slate
Fiscal Years 2009 and 2010. After SFY 20l'o, the legislature establishes'caps to determine the
maximum liability" exposure for these expenses on a biennial basis. The amount of 2021 County
Taxes attributable to the State pass through for these Mcdicaid State Programs was $7,028,659 or
24.47% of County Taxes. . , j

Although the Nursing Home is able to recover most its expenses through user charges, the Nursing
docs require a subsidy from property taxes: '

As a government owned nursing home, the census of Mcdicaid residents is much higher than private
nursing home levels. As of December 31, 2021, approximately 89% of the nursing home census
consisted of residents needing Mcdicaid assistance in order to pay for their care. Based on the 2021
Medicaid cost report for Maplewood, the per diem rate was calculated to be $608.90, however, ihc
actual paid per diem as of December 31, 2021 was $198.85 or $410.05 per day short of 2021 cost.s.
The supplemental payment provided an additional reimbursement averaging $54.27 with the
Proportionate Share Funds providing additional reimbursement of $170.92 per day. These additional
payments still leave the allowable per diem rate short by approximately $184.86 per day.

As of January 1, 2022, the Mcdicaid rate for Maplewood Nursing Home increased by $2.62 per day
to a daily rate of $201.47.

V
The analysis for govemmcnlal scrivitie.s indicates the total cost as well as the net cust of services.
The net. cost of services identifies the cost of t

revenues that arc not directly related to specific
would offsrl, thn.sc scrvicc.s.

losc supported by lax assessments and unrestricted
charges for services or grants and contributions that

Cheshire Cuunly, Guvcriiiiieiital Activilio
For Year CndingjDecember 31,2021 and December 31, 2020

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2021 2020 2021 2020

General Government $  6,702,164 3;  7,038,421 $ 5,197,01 1 $ 5.641,375

Public Safety 9,069,447 10,157,229 6,562,791 8,058,435

Human Services . 14,589.215 1 1,705,503 6,597,399 ^ 8,660,173

Conservation 60.484 67,671 60,484 67,671

Economic Development 889,344 423,488 (912) 0

Nursing Home 19,997.929 21,520,235 1,340,956 ,  2.892.966

Interest Expense 1.366.323 1.609.976 1.366.323 1.609.976

Total Expenses 52.674.906 $ 52.522.523 $ 21,124,052

Financial Analysis of County Funds
.Cheshire County, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related
legal requirements.
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Governmental Funds ^
During ihc year ended December 31, 2011, ihe County imptemcrned GASB Statement 54, Fund
Balance-Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Under Statement 54, the County has
scgrcgalcd fund balance into five classiflcations:jNonspcndablc, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and
Unassigned. One major example of the effects caused by the implementation of GASB 54.is that the
various Capital Reserve Fund balances are now rjcportcd as part of the General Fund.
As of December 31, 2021, the County's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $21',823,007, an increase of $4,415,767 in comparison with the prior year. The majority of
the increase is due to the receipt of ARPA funds. Approximately 72.8% of this total, $15,888,316,
represents unassigned fund balance, an increase [of $3,789,777 over 2020 or 23.46% of the County's
annual budget. The County has applied $3,663,507 towards 2022 taxes adjusting the unassigned to
18.05%. I
The amount of the" County's unassigned fund balance is in line with our objective of retaining a
recommended level of between 13% and 17% and to evaluate the use of fund balance for anything
over 18% in subsequent budgets.

A complete description of the above mentioned classifications and a more detailed breakdown may be
found on page 36 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Budgetary Highlights (
By State statute, the County Convention must- adopt its annual budget within 90 days after the
beginning of the County's fiscal year. Therefore, any new purchases or proposed changes to the
budget arc not executed until the budget is adopted. On March 22, 2021, the County Convention
adopted the 2021 budget. As adopted, the bottom line was down 1 1.48%, ($7,261,733) fur a total
budget of $56,017,994. The major decrease was due to gross proceeds of bond proceeds from 2020 in
comparison to 2021. Taxes to be raised were up by .64%, $182,712 over 2020 for total taxes to be
raised of$28,901,083. |
The County became aware that it would become direct recipients of American Rescue Plan Funds
(ARPA). In June, 2021, the County received its first tranche in the amount of $7,389,309.50. The
ARPA funds were placed into a separate account with a substantial amount recommended to be
expended. As a result, the 2021 budget was amended. Cheshire County not only supported their own
needs but also looked to the community by providing a portion of their allocation to all Cheshire
County Municipalities as well as.assisting small businesses and non-profits that had struggled
economically during COVID. Below is a list of
funds.

the 2021 allocation of the Cheshire County ARPA

$ 1,000,000 - Total allocation to Cheshire County- Municipalities
$200,000 - Aide to Small Businesses i
$500,000 - Aide to Non Profits \
$15,000 - Employee Retention

$750,000 - Employee Premium Pay

$2,350,258 - HVAC upgrades to County buildings
$6,500-Community Arts Funding
$1,300,000- Emergency Management System Capital Start-up Costs
$63,825 - Administrative Support j
$12,000- MNH Entrance Access Card system
$1,067,542 - Maplcwood Construction Project for COVID delays

- vu -
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Further the County received Pro Share funds in June, 2021 in an amount greater than what was
originally budgeted. On August 10, 2021, a budget amendment was brought before the County
Delegation amending the budget for the receipt; of the receipt of the ARPA funds that were being
recommended for expenditure as well as non-budgeted ProSharc funds of $4,065,420.

With the added Pro Share Funds received, the D^elcgation approved additional spending of $450,000
as well as setting aside $722,000 in Capital"Reserves and $2,71 1,633 further set aside to offset future
taxes. Finally, they amended taxes to be raised by making a reduction in the amount of $182,712
resulting is a 0% increase in taxes for 2021. |Thc total amendments impacting the bottom line
spending resulted in an amended budget of $67,725,230.

1

I

Further budgetary highlights include Registry of Deeds revenues coming in $309,000 over projections
as well as revenues for the Department of Corrections coming in approximately $400,000 over
projections due to revenue generated from holding Federal Inmates. Additionally, the Connected •
Families'program that was grant funded in prior years and is now a billable program generated
approximately $1,000,000 in surplus for 2021.

CapitalAssets and Debt Administration \
Capital Assets—The County's investment in j capital assets for governmental activities as of
December 31, 2021, was $72,791,998 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land and improvements, water and wa.stc water sy.slcms, htiilding.s and improvements,
improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, and construction in progre.s.s.

Majur'Capiial ptujccLs and or equipment that were in progress or finalized in 2021 include the final,
new construction at Maplewood Nursing Home. Other County Facilities building and equipment
were complete totaling approximately $430,000. 1

i

Note 3 - Notes of Capital Assets provides additional information about capital asset activity during
2021. I

r
Long-Tcrm Debt—At December 31, 2021, the County had total general obligation bonded debt and
notes payable outstanding of $44,081,293. Of this amount, $10,450,000 is for the County
Correctional Facility with the Gcolhermal Heating and Cooling System Bond for the County
Correctional Facility having an outstanding balance at year-end of $150,000. In 2017 the County
bonded for the Expansion and Renovation of Maplewood Nursing Home and as of December, 2021
had an ending balance of $24,820,000. The County purchased 33 Winter Street in 2020 with a long
term lease with the Stale of New Hampshire for the State Court Systems. This had an outstanding
balance of $6,090,000. Additionally, the County entered into a Joint Obligation with the City of
Keenc to pay off a bond the City had outstanding for the 33 Winter Street Building. Based on the
joint obligation, the outstanding amount applicable to the county as of year- end was $135,000. The
County entered into an Energy Upgrade project for a total of $2,391,704. The financing was done via
a Capital lease and broken down in two parts to lease the ponion of the LED lighting for 10 years
with the other upgraded equipment to be financed over 20 years. As of December 31, 2021 the 10
year outstanding amount is $546,000 with the 20 year component at $ 1,845,704. Finally,^the County
has two outstanding vehicle leases for the ShcrifFiS Department totaling $44,589.00.

'
I

'  - viil -
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i
i

Thc County's long term bonded debt decreased by debt payments of 53,856,250 during 2021 and
increased by $2,420,673 with the addition of the Energy Capital Lease.

The current outstanding debt for Cheshire County is as. follows:

^  Cheshire County, Outstanding Debt
December 31,2021

Governmental Years

Activities Remaining
Jail Construction V 10,450,000 6

Jail Gcoihcmial System 150,000 3

Maplewood Nursing Home 24,820,000 16

33 Winter Street* 6,090,000 19

Joint City Debt 135,000 ^  ' 9

Energy Upgrade Cap Ls (1) 1,845,704
I

•  20

Energy Upgrade Cap Ls (2) 546,000
1  '

10

2020 Sheriff Vehicle Ls 15.620 1

2021 ShcrifTVchicIc Ls 28.969
i

2  =

Total Outstanding i $ 44,081,293

Debt Ratios Fy2021

Per Capita (76,040-2020)

Ratio to Net Assessed Val($7,W8,443,544)

Ratio to Modified Assessed (
Valuation ($7,724,260,385)

$44,081,293
bvcrall Debt

I $579.71
I 0.57%

0.57%

$37,991,293
^J^ci Debt

$499.62

0.49%

0.49%

Having issued a new bond for the purchase pf 33 Winter Street, on January 2, 2020, Moody!s
assigned a Aa2 rating for this bond issue.

Economic Factors

•  The Cheshire County unemployment rate for December 2021 was, 2.7%, which compares

to the State's rate of 3.0 %, the New ̂ gland rate of 4.5% and the national rate of 3.9 %.
I

Most recent equalized assessed valijations of property used for appropriating Cheshire
County's 202! taxes were $8,666,908,474. This is an increase over the prior year
assessed valuations of 8.01% or $642,642,769.

•  There were no outstanding lax payments due as of December 31, 2021.

- IX -
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I

Below is a list of the 2021 Tax AppoLlonmcnls to the Towns and the City of Kccnc.
2021 Apportionment

Alstcad $ 646,975

Chesterfield 2,072,623

Dublin 908,618
Fitzwilliam 1,202,279

Gilsum 255,561
Harrisville 815,195

»  1

Hinsdale 1,330,959

JafTrcy 1,942,^78
Kccnc 7,227,370

Marlbdrough •  615,865
Marlow 254,539
Nelson 468,843
Richmond 413,385

Rindge . 2,539,279

Roxbury 91,846
•  j

Sioddard 1,060,489

Sullivan 215,207

Surry 325,858

Swanzey 2,274,778

Troy 544.259
Walpole 1.713,518

Westmoreland 648.688

Winchester 1.149:809

Total $28,718 j371

Requests for Information |
^  I

This Hnancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the county's finances for all those
with an interest in the governments' finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Sheryl A. Trombly,
Finance Director, 12 Court Street, Keenc, NH 03431 or strombly@co.chcshire.nh.us.

- X •



EXHI8ITA

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSIHRE

Staiemenc or Net Position {
December-31, 202! i

}

ASSETS

Currcnl Assets;

Cosh and cash equivalents
Resiricicd cash

Investments

Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments

Prepaid items

Total Currcnl Assets

Noneurrent Assets:

Capital assets:

Non-dcprcciabie capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total Noneurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Loss on debt refunding j
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to net pension liability

't otal Deferred Outflows of kcsotirccs

LIABILITIES !

Current Liabilities; ,
Accounts payable «' ,
Accrued-liabilities

Rciainage payable
Due to other governments
Advonces from grantors

Unearned revenue

Current portion of bonds payable
Current portion ofjoint obligation payable
Current portion of capital leases payable

•Total Current Uabliilics
I

Noneurrent Liabilities; f
Bonds payable

Joint obligation payable
Capital leases payable

Compensated absences payable
OPEB liability

Net pension liability «
Total Noneurrent Liabilities

' Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESpURCES
Deferred inflo%v$ of resources related to OPEB liability
Deferred inno^vs of resources related to net pettsion liability

Total Deferred (nilows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position

Governmental

Acttvilie.t

27,436,701

2.329,760

325,836

812,029

2,465,828

231,005

33.601.159

1,630.224
71:161,774

72.791.998

106.393.157

361,445

645.793
3,690.936

4,698.174

2,110.039

1,511.566
37,51 1

811.826

4,397.665

' 155,838
3,665,000

15,000

'151.873
12.856318

41.247.433

120,000

2.2'84.4I9
927,374

3,289,378

18.674.491

66,543,095.

'79.399.413

472,394

6.4S7.38S

6.929.779

28.495.685

458,250

^■'91.796)

S 24,762,139

See accompanying notes to lite basic financial statemenu



EXHIBIT B

COUNTS' OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
S(atemcn( ol Activities

For ihc Year Ended December 31, 2021

Funciions/Prognims

.7

Governmental Activities:

General government

Public safety
Human services

Conservation

Economic development

Nursing home

Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Extxnses

6.702.164

9.069.447

14,589.215

60.484

889,344

19.997.929

1.366323

Program Revenues

Charges for
Services'

$  912,479

2,288.320

■ 3.570,703

9,181.773

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

S  536,275

218.336

4,421.113

890,256

8,817.805^

S 52.674.906 $ 15.953,275 $ 14.883.785

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

56.399

657,395

713,794

Net (Expense) Revenue
,and Changes

■  in Net Position

Governmental

Activities

(5.197.011)

(6.562.791)

(6.597.399)
(60,484)

912

(1,340,956)
0.366.323)

(21.124,052)

General revenues:

Property taxes

* Interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Loss on disposal of asset
Total general revenues and

loss on disposal of asset
I  •Change in net position

Net Position at beginning of year

Net PoS'iinn si eriH nf yrjir

See accompanying notes to the ftari'cfinancial statements
2

28.718.37!

29.848

1.058.937

(30,006)

29,777.150

•8.653,098
16,109.041

$ 7.4.762. no



EXHIBIT C

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and.cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Investments

Accounts receivable, net

Due from other governments'

Due' from other funds

Prepaid items
Total Assets ,

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total bcfcrrcd Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

iRetAinage payahle

Due to other governments
Advances from grantors

Unearned revenue

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Restricted

ComiititieJ

Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of

Resources, and Fund Balances

Gtmcral

Fund

2,324.854

1567,315
I 231.005

25,021,395

S  11,528.595
li 077 709

811.826

186,184

1  155,838
2.740,754

6,500,906

231,005
81,748

ll559.556
[759,864

15,888,316

18,520,489

ARPA

Fund

S 20,990,653 S 1,461,878

95,539

812.029

2.722.355

4,184.233

S 25,021,395 $ 4,184,233

S  4,180.408

4.180,408

3,825

3.825

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

S  1,564,349

2,329,760

230.297

140,974

18.399

4,283.779'

S  4.283.779

349.187

37.SII

31,073

567,315

985,086

3,101.155

197,538

3,298,693

Total

Governmental

Ftinds

S 24,016.880

2,329,760
325.836

812,029

2,465,828

3,308,069
231.005

33.489,407

S 33.489,407

1,877,782

1 077 709

37,511

811,826

4,397,665
155.838

3.308.069

11,666,400

231.005

3.186,728

1,559,556

957,402

15.888,316

21.823.007

S 2S;021,395 $ 4,184.233 $ 4,283.779 S 33,489,407

See accompanying holes lo the basicfinancial stoiementi
3



EXHIBITC-I

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Reconciliation of (he Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position

December 31. 2021 '

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit C)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position arc different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, ore not reported in the funds.

I  ,

Losses on debt rcfundings arc recognized on an accrual basis in (he
statement of net position, not the modified accrual basis.

I

I

Internal Service Fund is used by the County to charge the costs of
health and dental insurance. This balance represents the amount due

from the Proprietary Fund at year end.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

that do not require or provide the use of current financial resources
are not reported within the funds. I
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB liability

Deferred outflows of resources related to net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB liabilityDeferred inflows of resources related to net pc^ion liability

l.ong-leim liabilities arc not due and payable in the current
prriod and, therefore, arc not reported in the funds. Long-
term liabtlilics at .year end consist of:
Bonds payable

Joint obligation payable
Capital teases payable

Accrued interest on long-term obligations
Compensated absences payable
OPEB liability

Net pension liability

S 21.823.007

Not Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit

72,791,998

361.445

3,187,564

A)

645,793

3.690,936

(472,394)

(6.457,385)

(44.912,433)

(135,000)

(2,436,292)

(433,857)

(927,374)

(3,289.378)
(18.674,491)

$ 24,762.139

See accontponving notes to (he basicfinancial siatemenU:
4



EXHIBIT D

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statcmeni of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Balances

Revenues:

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services
Interest and investment income

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures;
Current operations:
General government

Public safety ■

Human services

Conservation

Economic development

Nursing home

Capital outlay ^

Debt service: <

Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges ,
Total Expenditures

Excess icvctiucs uvei (uiiJci) cxpciidiluies

Other financing sources (uses):
laauoncc-ofcapital Icttacs

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balances at beginning of year

Fund Balances at end of year

General

Fund

ARPA

Fund ■

Nonmajor

Governmental

Ftind?

Total

Governmental

Funds

S 28,718,371

10,830,446
15.853.929

22.458
1,079.837

$  3,208.901

3.825

$  1 ,'558,232,

99,346

3,565
109,100

,J 28,718,371

15,597,579

15,953.275

29,848
1,188.937

56,505.041

]

3.212.726 1,770,243 61:488.010

6,761,908
8,472,034

13,997,571

69,371

.  19,107.730

704.544
1'

263,016
42,904

642,146

889,344

9,100

2,779.342

7,024,924

8,514,938'
14,639,717

69,371

889,344

19,116,830

3,483.886

3,846,213
1.907,693

f

3,846.213
1.907.693

54.867,064 - 4,625,852 59,492,916

1,637,977 3,212,726 (2,855,609) 1.995,094

7i,!>69
3.479.422
(674.300)

2,834,091

(3,208,901)

(3,208,901)

2,391.704

730,699
(326,920)

2.795.483

2,4 20.673

4,210,121
(4.210,121)

2.420.673

4,472,068 3,825 (60,126) 4,415,767

141048.42) 3:358.-819 17,407,240

$  18.520.459' S  3,825 ' S  3,298,693 .S 21,823,007

See accompanying notes-lo the basic financial statements



EXHIBIT D-I

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Net Change in Fund Balances • Govcmmcnial Funds (Exhibit D)

Amounts reponed for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because;
N  I

Govcmmcnial funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is ailocatcd.ovcr their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Governmental funds only report the disposal of assets to (he extent proceeds arc received from the
sale. In the statement of activities, a gain or toss is reported for each disposal. This is the amount
of the loss on the disposal of capital assets reduced by the actual proceeds received from the disposal.

Issuance of long-term obligations arc other financing sources in (he funds, but issuance of long-term
obligations increase liabilities in the statement of net position. Issuances in the currcni year arc as follows:
Capita) leases payable

Governmental funds report the cffcci of bond issuance prcnniums and losses on debt rcfundings when
the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts arc amonized in the statement of activities over the

life of the related debt Amortization recognized in the current year is as follows;
Amortization of bond issuance premium
Amortization of loss on debt refunding

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but debt repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Current year repayments are as follows;
Principal paid on joint obligation payable
Principal paid on bonds payable
Principal paid on capital leases payable

I

Revenue received fiuiii the Slate ufNcw Hmiipsliiie und reponed in the governmental funds is

reported as a reduction of the direct financing lease receivable in|thc siaicmcni of net position.
The Internal Service Fund is used by the County to charge (he costs of health and dental insurance to
individual funds. The net cost of the Internal Serv ice Fund is reported in Governmental Activitioc.

$  4.415.767

(247,082)

30.006

(2.420.673)

630,407

(130,279)

26,500

3.815,000

14,750

(130,000)

1,089.885

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, do not require the use of current financial
resources, and therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These expenses .
arc from the following sources:

Aecmcd interest

Compensated absences payable

Governmental funds report OPES and pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, OPES and pension expense reflects the change in the OPEB liability and net'
pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and docs not require the
use of currcni nnancia! resources. This is the amount by which OPEB and pension expense differed
from OPEB and pension contributions in the current period:

Nct.changcs in OPEB
' Net changes in pension

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit B)

31,205
(3.205)

(16.462)

1.547.279

$  8.653,098

See accompanying notes to the basic financial siatcmenLt
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EXHIBIT E

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Net Position 1
Proprietor)'Funds ) !
December 31. 2021 |

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources |

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Total Current Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources I

Iniemal Service

Fund

3.419.821

3.419.821

232.2S7

232.2S7'

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

3.187,564

S ■ 3,187.564

See accompanying noles la the basic financial sialements



EXHIBIT'F

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW H AMPSHIRE

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
^Proprietary Funds |
Forihc Year Ended December 31, 2021 '

Operating revenues:

Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Administrative

Total Operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues:

Interest revenue

Net Non-operating revenues

Change in net position

Net Position at beginning of year

Net Position al end of year

Internal Service

Fund

S  5.908,517
238,445

6,146,962

S.DS9.SI3

5.059.513

1.087.449

2.436

2.436

1,089.885

2.097.679

S  3.187.564

See accompanying notes to the hasic financial statements
8:



EXHIBIT G

'COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For (he Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash Hows from operating activities;

Cash.rcccivcd for services provided

Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

investment income

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and .cash equivalents at end of year
^  '

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Operating income

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash and cash equivalents at erid of year consist of the following:
Cash and cash equivalents

Inicmal Service

Fund

$  6,146.962
(5.073.375)

1.073.587

2.436

2,436

1,076,023
2.343.798

$  3,419,821

1,087.449

(13,862)

1.073,587

S  3.419.821

Sec accompanying noles lo ihe basicfinancial statements
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EXHIBIT h\
COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Fiduciary Not Position
Fiduciary Funds

December 31. 2021

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to other govemmcnis

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for:

Individuals

Total Net Position

Custodial

Funds

$  1.103.197

1.103,197

16,733
986.894

1.003.627

99.570

99.570

Sec acconipanving notes to the basicfinancial statements
ID



EXHIBIT 1

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
'  i

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For ihe Year Ended December 31, 2021

ADDITIONS:

Inveslmcnl earnings:
Interest income

Tola! Investment earnings

Amounts collected for individuals

Fees collected for other governments
Total'Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Benefits paid to bcnericiaries
Payments of fees to other govemmenls

Total Deductions

Change in net position

Net Position at beginning of year

Net Position at end of year

Custodial

Funds

157

157

731.281
8.219.614

8.951,052

729,691
8.219.614 t
8,949.305

1,747

97.823

99.570

r

Ste accompanying notes to the basicfinancial statements



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

r

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'  ̂ • I *
The accounting policies of .the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire conform to accounting policies
generally accepted in the United States of America for local governmental units, .except as indicated
hereinafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Financial Reporting Entity

The County of Cheshire, New Hampshire (the County) was established in 1769-under the laws of the
Slate of New Hampshire. The County boundaries include twenty-three New Hampshire municipalities
located in southwestern New Hampshire. The County operates underithe Commissioner/Delegation form
of government and provides services as authorized by state statutes.

i  ' '
The financial statements include those of the various departments governed by the Commissioner and
other officials with financial responsibility. Thc County has no other separate organizational units, which
meet criteria for inclusion in the financial statements as defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Basis of Presentation

The County's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of
net position and a statement of activities, and fund
level of financial information.

I. Government-Wide Financial Statements

financial statements which provide a rhorc detailed

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the County as a
whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government, except for.fiduciary
funds. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to avoid duplicating revenues and expenses.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the County
at year end. The statement of activities presents a| comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function-of the County^'s governmental activities. Direct expenses a're thbse
that arc specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods- or services
offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a
particular program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues arc presented as general
revenues of the County. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the County.

2. Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or activities in
separate funds in order to aid financial management |and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the County at this more detailed level.

12



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For ihc Year Ended December 31, 2021

The focus of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major r\inds. Each major fund
is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The
fiduciary funds arc reported by type.

Fund Accounting

\  ,
The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting cniity with a sclf-bal^cing sot of accounts. The County employs the use of three categories of
funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

I. Governmental Funds

Governmental funds arc those through which most governmental functions typically arc financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of curfenl financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the,purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The
dilTcrence between governmental fund assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, is reported as fund balance. The following arc the County's major
.governmental .funds:

The General Fund is the main operating fund of tte County and is used to account for all financial
resources except thosc rcquired to be .accounted for in another fund.

The ARPA Fund is used to account for-all financial resources related to the American Rescue Plan Act

funding made available to the County related to the CIOVID-19 Stimulus package of 2021.

2. Proprietary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net position,
financial position, and cash flows. Proprietary funds arc classified as enterprise or jntcmal service. The
County has no enterprise funds. The following is the County's proprietary fund:

t

The County is self-insured for its health and dental insurance. The activity associated with this self-
insurance program is accounted for in the Internal Sei^ice Fund.

3. Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The County maintains one
■type of fiduciary fund: custodial funds. The County|'s custodial funds are held and administered by the
County for the bchcfit of others; assets arc not available to support the County or its programs. Tlic
County's custodial funds account for Sheriffs escrow and court-forfeited funds, Registry of Deeds funds.
Nursing Home resident funds.'and inmate funds.

13



COUNTY OF CHESHFRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, ,2021

Measurement Focus

,\. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The gqvcmmcnt-wide financial statements arc prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated
with the operation of the County are included on the Statement of Net Position.

2. .Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds arc accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, only current assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources generally arc included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues,J
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing
sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources; This
approach difTcrs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the govcmmcnt-widc financial
statements are prepared. Governmental fiind financial statements therefore include reconciliations with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the
statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, the proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources associated with the operation of this fund arc included 'on.thc statement of net position. The
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position..The statement of cash flows provides information about how the
County finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

i

The fiduciary funds arc reported- using the economic resources measurement focus.

/•

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions arc recorded in the-financial records and reported on
the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements arc prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. | Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual
basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus
expenditures.

I. Revenues - Exchange and Nori-exchangc Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On.a modified accrual basis,
revenue is recorded in the year in which the resources arc measurable and become available. Available
means that the resources will be collected within the current year or are expected to be collected soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the |currcni fiscal year. For the County', available means
expected to be received, within sixty days of year end.

14



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Non-cxchangc iransaciions, in which the County receives value without directly giving equal valueJn
return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements |and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the year for which the taxes arc levied (see Note 9).'Revenue from grants;
entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources
arc required to be used or the year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
County must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements in
which the resources arc provided to the County on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at year end: property taxes, charges for services and interest on investments.

Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues w

measurable until actually received.

len received in cash because they arc generally not

Grants and entitlements .received before the eligibility requirements are met arc recorded as advances
from grantors.

2. Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, arc not recognized in governmental funds.

Budgetary Data

The County's budget represents functional appropriations as authorized by the County Delegation. The
County Delegation may transfer funds between operating categones as they deem necessary. Tlie County
adopts its budget under State regulations, which differ somewhat' from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America in that the
on the basis of fund types.

focus is on the entire governmental unit rather than

Stale law requires balanced budgets but permits the use of beginning fund balance to reduce the property
tax rate.

/nvestments

Investments are stated-at their fair value in all funds. Certificates of deposit with a maturity of greater than
ninety days from the date of issuance are included in investments.

Accounts Receivable

The County uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the County's policy to directly
charge off uncollectible receivables when management determines the receivable will not be collected.



(CONTINUED)

governmental funds. These assets arc reported in the

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAIMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31. 2021

Capital Assets

Genera) capital assets result from expenditures in the
government-wide statement of net position, but arc not reported in the governmental fund fmancia)
statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated capital assets arc recorded at their acquisition value as of the date
received. The County maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for its govcmincntal activities, except
for its nursing horne department. The capitalization threshold for asse'ts of the nursing home is S500.
improvements arc capitalized; the costs of normal rriaintenance and repairs that do hot add to the value of
the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not.

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in process arc depreciated. Improvements arc
depreciated over the remaining ijseful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description

Land improvements '
Buildings and improvements

Water system

Wastcwatcr system

Vehicles and equipment

Loss on Debt Refunding

Years

5-30

5-50

30

15-30

3-25

Debt refundings that result in a difference between the reacquisition price of old debt and the net carrying
value of that debt have been reported 'in the. accompanying financial statements as a loss on debt
refunding. Losses on debt refundings arc amortized as a component of interest expense over the
remaining life of the related debt using the effective interest rate method.

Bond Premium

Bond premiums arc amortized as a component of interest expense over the life of the related bond using
the effective interest rate method. Bonds payable arc reported in the accompanying financial statements
gross of any applicable unamortizcd bond premium.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation and sick leave as they provide services. Provision is made-in the annual budget
for vacation and sick leave. Vacation may be accrued to one and one-half times an employee's annual
earned vacation. Payout for unused vacation time is limited to a maximum of 7.5 weeks. Any unused
vacation beyond this amount will be forfeited. For governmental fund financial-statements, compensated
absences are reported as liabilities and expenditures as payments come due each period. The entire
compensated absence payable is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

Employees may accumulate sick leave days up to ten days pcr^year, cumulative to a maximum of sixty
days. Any unused sick leave days in excess of sixty days are to be paid to the employee at the end of the

16



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE ^
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

year at a rate of one-half day for each excess day that has been accrued. No payment for unused sick leave
is made upon termination.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payablcs, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations arc reported in the govcmmenl-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in
a timely manner and in full from current resources are reported as obligations of the funds. General
obligation bonds and other long-term obligationsj that will 'be paid from governmental funds arc
recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements when due.

I  ' *
P.ostcmployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPES)

*  ' . ' [ '
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the Tiduciaiy net position of the New
Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS) OPEB Plan|and additions ib/dcductions from NHRS's fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same-basis as they are reported by NHRS. For this purpose,
NHRS recognizes benefit payments when due and payable In accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments arc reported at fair value, except for non-registered commingled funds valued at net asset
value (NAV) as.a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

Pensions

For puiposcs of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
NHRS and additions to/deductions from NHRS's fiduciary net position have been dctcnmihcd on the same
basis « they arc reported by NHRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) arc recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Net Position -

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities
ahd'deferred inflows of resources'..Net investment j in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances on any borrowings used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as rcstrictcd""whcn there
arc limitations imposed on their use either through enabling legislation.adopted by the County or through
external restrictions' imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations-of other governments!
Unrestricted net position is the tiet amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources that arc not included in

or the restricted components of net position.
the determination of net investment in capital assets'

The County's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position arc available. .

17



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
I

Fund Balance Policy

(CONTINUED)

The County has segregated fund balance into five classifications: Nonspcndablc, Reslricicd, Commillcd,
Assigned, and Unassigncd. These components of fund balance arc defined as follows:

•  Nonsocndable Fund Balance: Amounts that arc* not in a spendable fomi (such as inventory or
prepaid expenses) or are required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance: Amounts, that can only be spent for the specific purposes stipulated by
external resource providers (such as grantors) or the enabling legislation (federal *or slate law).
Restrictions may bc'changcd or lifted only with the consent of the resource providers or the
enabling legislation.

•  Committed Fund Balance: Amounts that can

...a formal action of the County's highest level
X used only for the.specific purposes determined by
of decision making authority (annual meeting of the

County Delegation). Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the governing body taking
the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally. The resolution must either be
approved or rescinded, as applicable, prior to the last day of the fiscal year for which the
commitment is made. The amount subject to the constraint may be determined in the subsequent
period.

•  Assigned Fund Balance: Amounts that the County intends to use for a specific puipose. For all
governmental funds other than the General Fund, any.remaining positive amounts arc to be
classified as "assigned". The Board of Commissioners expressly delegates this authority to the
County Administrator. Items that would fall under this type of fund balance classification would
be encumbrances. ^

•  Unassigncd'Fund Balance: Amounts that arc not obligated or specifically designated and arc
available for any purpose. The residual classification of any General Fund balance is to be
reported here. Any deficit fund balance of another fund is also classified as "unassigncd

Spending Prioritizations

In instances when expenditures are-i.ncuTTed for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, restricted fund balance is considered to have been spent first. When expenditures are
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be
used, committed resources should be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigncd
amounts.

Minimum Level of Unassigncd Fund Balance

In accordance with the County's fund balance policy, additional operating flexibility is'imponant given
the variable nature of the nursing home operations. The recommended minimum unassigncd fund balance
in the County's General Fund should equal 13%|of the annual total budgeted appropriations. The
recommended target balance is to maintain an unassigncd fund balance between 13% and 17% of the
annual total budgeted appropriations. The target level of the unassigncd fund balance may be achieved by
conservatively estimating revenues and by refrainin'g from using any portion of the unassigncd target
balance to reduce the tax rate. As a general mlc, any unassigncd fund balance in excess of 18% of the
total budgeted appropriations is unnccc.ssary and may be appropriated by the Commissioners to offset
property taxes as part of the budget approval process
year.

18
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COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31-, 2021

■The Board of Commissioners may recommend to the Delegation through a budget amendment to
appropriate funds from the unassigncd fund balance even if. such use decreases the unassigned fund
balance below the .recommended minimum balancej in the event of emergency purposes or .ro alleviate
unanticipated short-term budgetary problems, such as rcvcnuc shoiifalls.

i  y «

Inierfund Activity
%

Exchange transactions .between funds arc reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/
expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement
for repayment arc reported as inlerfiind. transfers, jlnterfund transfers are reported as other .financing
sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in the propricta^ funds.
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the ftinds that initially paid
for them arc not presented on the financial statements.

•  \ »

Operating Revenues and Expenses
t

•  •

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary fund. Operating revenues represent charges to employees and retirees for services. Operating
expenses arc necessary costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the proprietary
fund. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

Estimates

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity^ with accounting principles generally accepted in the.
United Stales of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2—DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments as of December 31, 2021 arc classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Investments ' ,
Statement ofFiduciary Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits and investments'at December 31, 2021 consist of the following:

Cash on hand

Deposits with financial institutions
Investments

19

27.436.701
2.329,760

325,836

1.103.197

31.195,494

$  2,781
30.866,877

325.836
£ 31 .195.494



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ihc Year Ended December 31, 2021

CONTINUED)

The County's investment policy states that any excess ftinds which arc not immediately needed for the
purpose of expenditure may only be invested in certificates of deposit, overnight repurchase agreements,
U.S. Government securities - Treasury-bills, the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool and
others as approved by the County Commissioners and

Credit Risk

the County Executive Committee.

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill ia obligation to the holder
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. The County's investment policy 'addresses credit risk by limiting investments to the
safest types of securities and diversifying the investment portfolio. Sec investment instrument types noted
above. \

As of December 31, 2021, the County's investment in the NHPDIP, a state investment pool, had a fair
value balance of S325,836 and was rated AAArw.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may
not be returned. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the cvcnt'of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not'be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Currently, the County docs not have a
formal investment policy for assurance against custodial credit risk; however, the County has an
agreement with the bank to collatcralizc all deposit^in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

Of the County's deposits with financial institutions at year end, $22,403,441 was collateralizcd by
securities held by the bank in the bank's name.

Investment in NHPDIP

The County is a voluntary participant in the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool (NHPDIP),
an external investment pool. The NHPDIP is not registered with the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission as an investment company The NHPDIP was created by state law and is
administered by a public body of state, local and banking officials. Financial statements for the NHPDIP
can be accessed through the NHPDIP's website at wv w.NHPDlP.com.

I

The County's" exposure to derivatives is indirect through its participation in the NHPDIP. The County's
proportional share of these derivatives is not available. The fair value of the position in the investment
pool is equal to the value of the pool shares.

NOTE 3—CAPITAL ASSETS

H  The following is a summary of changes in capital assets in the governmental activities:
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Balance

1/1/2021

CONTINUED)

AddUions Rcducuons

Balance

12/31/2021

L^nd $  1,354,410. S  1.354.410

Construction in process 88.525 $ 275,814 $ (88,525) 275.814

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1.442.935 275.814 (88.525) 1.630.224

Other capital o.sscts; 1 •

Ljnd improvements 732.741 732,741

Buildings and improvements 95.28Sl.385 2.958.953 (17.758) 98,230,580

Water system 1.545.667 1,545.667

Wasicwaicr system 921,220 921,220

Vehicles and equipment 7.204.564 429,987 (553,875) 7.080.676

Total other capital assets at historical cost 105.693.577 3.388,940 (571.633) 108.510.884

Less accumulated depreciation for: 1
Land improvements (524.428) (17,832) (542,260)

Buildings and improvemcnis (27,925.386) (3.245.975) i 1.294 (31,160.067)

Water system (1,262,323) (33.149) (1.295,472)

Wastewater system (663.233) (22.822) (686,055)

Vehicles and equipment (3.752.068) (441.021) 527.833 (3.665.256)

Total accumulated depreciation (34.127.438) (3.760.799) 539.127 (37.349.1 10)

Total other capital assets, net 71,566,139. (371.859) (32.506) 7 K161.774

Total capital assets, net S  73.009,074 J (96.045) S (121.031) $  72.791,998

Dcprcciotion cxpcnac wq3 charged to govcmmciilol funciiona as follows:

General government

Public safely

Human services

Nursing home

Total ^ $  3,760,799

The balance of the assets acquired through capital leases as of December 31, 2021 is as follows:

231,691

1.540,252

1 15.524

1.873,332

Construction in process

Vclticlcs and equipment

Lcss-accumulalcd depreciation for:

Vehicles and equipment

Total

NOTE 4—INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

249,044

349,622

(32.400)

566,266

The County has combined the cash resources of its ;ovcmmental, proprietary, and fiduciaiy funds. For
accounting and reporting purposes, that portion of the pooled cash balance is rcpoilcd in the specific fund
as an intcrfund balance. Intcrfund balances at December 31, 2021 arc as follows:
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CONTINUED)

lfi>'

i
l£i

Ccneral Fund

AR.PA Fund

Nonmajor Govcmmcnial Funds

General

Bind"

$ 2.722.35S

[18.399
S 2.7^0.754

Nonmajor

Govcmmcnial

Funds

$  567,315

567.315

Totals

S  567,315

2,722.355

18.399

$ 3.308.069

During the year, several intcrfund transactions occun^cd between funds. The various transfers were made
in accordance with budgetary authorizations. The 5300,000 transferred from< the Maplewood Capital
Projects Fund, a.Ncnmajor Govemmental Fund, to the General Fund represents interest earned on bond
proceeds. Transfers out of the ARPA Fund were to reimburse applicable funds for qualifying
expenditures incurred related to the grant; Transfers during the year ended December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

General

Fund

674.3U0

674,300

Transfer from

ARPA

Fund

S 3,152.502
56,399

5 3,208,901

Nonmajor

GovcmiT>cnial

Funds

■$ 326,920

S  326.920

Total.s

S 3,479,422
730.699

$ 4,210.121

NOTE 5—SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The County issue's lax anticipation notes during the year. These borrowings are to assist in the payment of
opciaiing expenses during the year and arc guaranteed to be repaid from the lax revenue received In
December from the Towns/City .within the County. '■

The changes in short-term debt obligations for the year ended December 31, 2021 arc as follows:

Balance • January I, 2021
Additions

Reductions

Balance - December 31, 2021

NOTE 6—LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Changes in long-term obligations of the govemmenla

18.000,000
(18.000,000)

activities are as follows:
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Bonds payable

Unamoitizcd bond premium

Total Bonds payable

Joint obligation payable

Capital leases payable

Compensated absences payable

Total

Balance

immx

45,325.000

(CONTINUED)

Addii'onff • Rsditiaifins,
S  (3,815.000)

Balance

■2>3I/202I
S 41.510.000

Due Within

One Venr

$ 3,(565,000

49.357.840 ' $ .

,  , — ,

(4,445.407) 44.912,433 3.665,000
161.500 (26,500) 135.000 15.000
30,369 2.420.673 (14,750) 2,436,292 151.873

924.169 78.792 (75,587) 927.374

S 50.473.878 5  2.499.465 $ (4.562.244) $ 48.411.099 S 3.831 .873

Payments on the general obligation borids, joint obligation payable, and capital leases of the governmental
activities arc paid out of the General Fund. Amortization of the governmental activities bond premium is
recognized as a component of interest expense on the Statement of .Activities (Exhibit B). Compensated
absences payable will be paid from the governmental fund where the employee's salary is paid.

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the County, for which its .full faith and credit are
pledged, and are payable from taxes'levied on all taxable property located within County boundaries. All
general obligation bonds are considered direct placements for the County. Bonds are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity.

♦

Bonds payable at December 31,2021 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Direct Placements:

201 7 Scries bond issue
2015 Refunding bond issue
2020 Series bond issue
2009 Series bond issue

Original
Issue

Amounr

$  31,040,000
17.425,000
6,415.000
1.300,000.

S  56,180,000

Interest

Rate

3.0-5.0%

3.0-5.0%

2.'5-4.0%
3.875-4.85%

Final

Maturity
Date

October 2037
October 2027
January 2040
August 2024

Add: Unamortized bond premiitm

Balance at
t2n 1/202.1

$  24,820,000
10,450,000
6,090,000

150,000

41,510.000
3.402.433

S  44.912.433

Debt service requirements to retire outstanding general obligation bonds .for governmental activities at
December 31,2021 are as follows:
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/

Year Ending

CONTINUED)

Direct Placements

December 31. Prihcioal Interest ' Totals

2022 $  3'665,000 $  1,664,200 S  5,329.200

2023 3 ,'675,000 ■ 11484.700 5,159.700

2024 3j675,000 1,304,800 4,979.800

.  2025 3i63S,000 1,124,750 4,759.750

2026 3.'605,000 981,400 4,586,400

2027-2031 11 !075,000 2.932,700 14,007.700

2032-2036 9)350,000 1,177,200 10,527,200

2037-2041 2)830,000 1 10.300 2,940,300

41)510,000 10,780,050 52,290,050

Add: Unamortiied bond premium 3)402,433 - 3.402,433

$  44)912,433 $  10,780,050 S  55,692,483

Joint Obligation Payable

The joint obligation payable at December 31, 2021 consists of:

S161,500 Joint Obligation agreement with the City of Kcene,
New liampshirc wiih principal payment of $26,500 in 2021
and then annual installments or$l5,000 through October 2030;

interest paid scmi-annually at 1.36%.

V.

135,000

Debt service requirements to retire the outstanding joint obligation payable for governmental activities at
December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Year Ending
Principal Interest Totals

2022 $ 15.000 $ 1,836 S 16,836

2023 15,000 1.632 16,632

2024 15,000 1,428 16,428

2025
.1 15,000 1.224 16,224

. 2026 15,000 1,020 16,020

2027-2030 60,000 2.040 62,040

S 135,000 $ 9,180 $ .  144.180

Capital Leases Payable

Capital leases payable represent lease agreements entered into for the financing of equipment
acquisitions. These contracts arc subject to cancellation should funds not be appropriated to meet payment
obligations. Amounts are annually budgeted in the applicable function.

The following are the individual capital leases payable outstanding at December 31, 2021:

24



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(CONTINUED)

Energy lease, paid in annual installments orSI'^S.914 through 2031
and (hen annual installmcnls ofS II 8.140 through September 2041;

interest from 1.99 to 2.477%

Vehicle, due in annual installments of$l6,l32,
interest at 7.31 %, through December 2023

Vehicle, due in annual installments of S16.541,

interest at 5.898%, through November 2022

Debt service requirements to retire outstanding ca
December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31.

including

including

S  2.391.704

28,968

15:620

$  2.436.292

jital leases payable for governmental activities at

Principal Interest Totals

2022 S 151,873 $ 59.713 $ 211.586

2023 H0.090 54,956 195,046

2024 127,937 50.978 178.9(5

2025 130,856 48,058 178,914

2026 ■ 133,844 ,45,071 178.915

2027-2031 . 716,498 178,074 894,572

2032-2036 485.975 104.722 590,697

2037-2041 • ' 549.219 41,478 590.697

»  $ 2i436.292 $ 583.050 $ 3,019,342

NOTE 7—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

I  ■ ' [ .
Total OPEB Liabilities, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and OPEB
Expense

Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan
Single Employer Plan

Total

Deferred OPEB

Outflows Liability

•S 47.008 S 858,678

598.785: 2.430.700

S  .645.793' S 3,289,378

Deferred

Inflows

S  11,598

460.796

S  472.394

OPEB •

Expense

S  61,967
209,541

$  271.508

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and defcned inflows of resources related to OPEB is

reflected as an increase to unrestricted net position in the amount of $173,399. .

COST-SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN

\
Plan Description

The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS) administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer other
posicmploymcnt benefit plan (OPEB Plan). The OPEB Plan provides a. medical insurance subsidy to
qualified retired members.
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The NHRS issues a publicly available nnancial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for NHRS. That report may be obtained by writing to New Hampshire
Retirement System at 54 Regional Drive, Concord New Hampshire 03301 or from their website at
www.nhrs.org.

The OPES Plan is divided into four membership types. The four membership types arc Group II Police
Officer and Firefighters, Group I Teachers, Group I Political Subdivision Employees, and Group I State
Employees. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

Bcnejits Provided

Benefit amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan arc set by state law (RSA 100-A;52, RSA
l00-A:52-a.and RSA IOO-A:52-b), and members are designated in statute by type. The medical insurance
subsidy is a payment made byNHRS to the fonner|cmploycr or its insurance administrator toward the
cost of health insurance for a-qualified retiree; his/her qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent
children with a disability, who arc living in the household and being cared for by the retiree. If the health
insurance premium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then only the health insurance
premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy
amount, then the retiree or other qualified person is'responsible for paying any portion that the employer
docs not pay.

Group I benefits arc based on creditable service, age
hire date, age and creditable service. Medical subsidy

and retirement dale. Group II benefits are based, on
rates established by RSA 100-A:52 II are dependent

upon whether retirees are- eligible for Medicare. Retirees not eligible for Medicare may receive a
maximum medical subsidy of $375.56 for a single person plan and $751.12 for a two-person plan.

.Retirees eligible for Medicare may receive a maximum medical subsidy of $236.84 for a single person
plan and $473.68 for a two-person plan.

Funding Policy
'  • t

Per RSA-100; 16, eontribuiion rates arc established and may be amended by the New Hampshire State
legislature and. arc dctcnhincd by the NHRS Board of Trustees based on an actuarial valuation. The
County's contribution rates for the covered payroll |of public .safety employees and general employees
were 3.66% and 0.29%, respectively. Contributions to the OPEB plan for the County were $97,790 for
the year ended December 31, 2021. Employees are not required to contribute to the OPEB plan.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred
Resources Related to OPEB

Out/lows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

At December 31, 2021, the County reported a liabilityof $858,678 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation from
June 30, 2020. The (bounty's proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on actual contributions by
the County during the relevant fiscal year relative to the actual contributions of all participating plan
members, excluding contributions to separately finance specific .liabilities of individual employers or
NHRS. At June 30, 2021, the County's proportiori was approximately 0.2144 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.0189 percentage points from' its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, the County recognized OPEB expense of $61,967. At
December. 31,2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences bct\vccn County
contributions and proportionate share of conlribiitions

County contributions subsequcrii to the
mcasurcrnent date

'I'otals

179

10.726

693

47.008

47.008 $ 11,598

The County reported $47,008 as deferred outfiows of resources related to OPEB resulting froni County
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Tjhis amount will be recognized as a reduction of the
net OPEB liability in the measurement period ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of rcsoiirccs related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense for the measurement periods as follows:

June 30.

2022

2023

2024

2025

(3,326)
(2,254)

(2.526)
(3.492)

S  (11.598)

Actuarial Assuhiptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise spcciHcd:

Inflation

Wage inflation

Salary'increases

Investment rate of rctum s

2.00%

2.75% (2.25% for teachers)

5.60%, average! including inflation
6.75% per ycarj net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including inflation for determining solvency contributions

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality Tables with creditabilily
adjustments for. each group (Police and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortality
intprovemciits using Scale MP-20! 9.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2019.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPES Plan investments was selected from a best estimate range
determined-using the building block approach. Undcrjthis method, an expected future real return range is
calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return net of investment expenses by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations and geometric real rates of return for each asset class:

Cla?s

Domestic equity

International equity

Fixed income

AUcmalivc investments

Real estate

Total

Target Allocation

30%

20%

2S%

15%

10%

100%

Weighted Average Long-Tcrm
Expected Real Rate of Return

(.14-6.46%

2.37-5.53%

3.60%

7.25-8.85%

6.60%

The discount rate used to measure the collective total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was 6.75%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that employer contributions
wilfbe made under the current statutes RSA lOO-Ailjo and RSA IOO-A:53. Based on those assumptions,
the OrCD Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to make all projected future benefit payments of
cuiiciii plan lucmbcis. Tlicicfoic, the loiig-tcrm expected rate of return on OPED Plan investments wasapplied to all periods of projected benefit payments toj determine the collective total OPEB liability.
SensUivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or l-pcrccntagc-polnl higher
than the single discount rate:

/

I % Decrease

fS.75%1

S  933.451

Cun-cnt

Discount Rate

f6.7?%l

$  858.678

1% Increase

f7-7S%l

$  793.621Net OPEB liability

SINGLE EMPLOYER PLAN

Plan Description

The County of Cheshire, New Hampshire administers the retiree health care benefits program, a single
employer defined benefits plan that is used to provide postcmployment benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) for all permanent full-time employees. No assets arc accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria
in paragraph 4 of Statement 75.
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Benefits Provided

(CONTINUED)

The County provides medical benefits to its eligible retirees and their covered spouses. The benefits arc
provided through the County's self-funded insurance plan that is administered by Harvard Pilgrim.
Employees other than police hired prior to July I, 201 1 arc eligible to retire at age 60, regardless of years
of creditable service, age 50 with at leaisl 10 years of creditable service, or at any-age if they have at least
20 years of creditable service and the sum of their age and years of service is at least 70. Employees other
than police hired on or after July I, 201 1 are eligible to retire at.age 65 regardless of years of creditable
service, or age 60 with at least 30 years of creditable service. Police officers hired prior to July 1, 2011
are eligible to retire at age 45 with at least 20 years of Group 11 creditable service, or at age 60 regardless
of their years of creditable service. Police officers hired on or aficr July 1,20II arc chgible to retire at age
50 with 25 years of Group 11 creditable service or at age 60 regardless of years of creditable service.
Retirees and their covered spouses arc required to pay 100% of the cost of the premium. The valuation
docs not account for the-cost of benefits to retirees or their spouses, aficr age 65. Surviving spouses
continue to receive coverage aficr the death of the cli
of the premium.

Employees Covered By Benefit Terms

;iblc retired employee but are required to pay 100%

At January 1, 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
I  /

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments
Ar.tivr. r.mplnyr-.r.s.

2

276

278

Total OPEB Uahility

The County's total-pPEB liability of $2,430,700 was measured as of December 3.1, 2021, and .was
determined by an actuarial valuation as oNanuary I, 2020.

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputsfor OPEB
\  ' * .

The lota! OPEB liability in the January 1, 2020 valiialion was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods.included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:

Salary increases 2.0.0%

Discount rate 2.12%

Healthcare cost trend rates 2:0% initial, increasing to 9.50% in 2021, then decreasing 0.50%
^  per year to an ultimate rate of 5.00% for 2030 and later years ■
' The discount rate was based on the index provided by the Bond Buyer lO-Bond General Obligation Index

based on the 20 year AA municipal bond rate as of December 31, 2020.

Mortality rates were based on the SOA RP-2014 Total Daiasct Mortality with Scale MP-2020 (Base Year
2006).
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Balance at January 1, 2021

Changes for ihc year:
Service cost

;  Inicrcsi

Benefit payments

Net changes

Balance at December 31, 2021

CONTINUED)

Total OPEB

Liability

S 2,282.041

133,953

48,026

(33.320-)

148.659

S 2.430.700

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-pcrccntagc-point lower or I-
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

1 % Decrease

•$ 2,679,130

Discount Rate

Ba.<;eline 1% Increase

S 2,200,082Total OPEB liability '$ 2.679,130 $ 2,430,700

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
V

The following presenu the total OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that arc l-pcrccntagc-point lower
or l-pcrccntagc-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rales

1% Decrease Baseline 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability S  2,086.226 $ 2.430.700 S 2,841,590

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB ,

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the County recognized OPEB expense of $209,541. At December
31, 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and dcrcrrcd inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources;

Diffciences between cxpccicd and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions

Totals

Deferred

Outflows of

Resources

598.785

Deferred

Inflows of

Resources

406.479

54,317

598.785 $ 460,796

30



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
will be recognized in OPEB expcnse'as follows:

(

December 31.'

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

note 8—defined benefit pension PLAN

Plan Description

(CONTINUED)

and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

27,563

27,563

27,563

38,7.93
16.507

137.989

The County contributes to the New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS), a public employee retirement
system that administers a single cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The plan
provides service, disability, death and vested retirement allowances to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions arc established and may be amended by the New Hampshire.State legislature.

The NHRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements"and required
supplementary information for NHRS. That report
Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive, Concord,
www.nhrs.org.

may be obtained by writing to New Hampshire
New Hampshire 03301 or from their website at

Substantially all ftill-time slate and local employees public school teachers, permanent firefighters and
pcmiancnt police officers within the State arc eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan.

The Pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong
to Group 1. Police and firefighters belong to Group II.

Benefits Provided

Benefit formulas and eligibility requirements for the pension plan arc set by State law (RSA lOO-A).

Group 1- benefits are provided based on creditable service and average fihal salary for the highest of either
three or five years, depending on when service commenced.

Groupl II benefits are provided based on age, years of creditable sch'ice and a benefit multiplier
depending on vesting status as' of January 1, 2012. The maximum retirement allowance for Group Tl
members vested by January I, 2012 (45 years of age with 20 years of service or age 60 regardless of years
of creditable service) is the average final compensation multiplied by 2.5% multiplied by creditable
service. For Group 11 members not vested by January I, 2012 the benefit is calculated the same way but
-the multiplier used in the calculation will change depending on age and years of creditable service as
follows:
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Years of Creditable Service as of

January 1. 2012

At least 8 but less'than 10 years

At least 6 but less than 8 years

At least 4 but less than 6 years
Less than 4 years

Minimum

Aec

46

47

48

49 ...

Minimum

Service

21

22

23

24

Benefit

Multiplier

2.4%

2.3%

2.2%

2.1%

n.55% of their covered salary, whereas general

Funding Policy

Covered police officers arc required to contribute
employees arc required to contribute 7.0% of their covered salary. The County is requircd to contribute at
an actuarially determined rate. The County's pension contribution rales for covered payroll of police
ofHcers and general employees were 24.77% and |l0.88%, respectively, through June 30, 2021, and
30.67% and 13.75%, respectively, thereafter. The County contributes 100% of the employer cost for
police oftlccrs and general employees of the County.

Per RSA-100:A16, plan member contribution rates are established and may be amended by the New

Hampshire Slate legislature and employer contribution rates are determined by the NHRS Board of
Trustees based on their actuarial funding policy. The County's pension contributions to ihe.NHRS for the
year ending December 31, 2021 were $2,192,391.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense,, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows of
Resources Related to Pension

At December 31, 2021. the County reported a liability of $18,674,491; for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability |was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial
valuation from Junc*30, 2020. The County's proportion of the net pension-liability was based on actual
contributions by the Courity during the relevant fi^al year .relative to the actual contributions of all
participating plan members, excluding contributions to separately finance specific liabilities'of individual
employers or NHRS. At June 30, 2021, Ihc Count's" proportion was'approximately 0.4214 percent,
which was a decrease of 0.,0035 percentage points from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended December 31. 2021, the Coijnty recognized pension expense of $645,133. At
December 31 i 2021, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension from the following sources:
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COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For chc Year Ended December 31, 2021

DifTcrcncc bct\vccn expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in.proportion and difTcrcnccs between jCounty
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

County contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

(CONTINUED)

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources . Resources

S  522,913 $

1,950.445

1.217.578

S 3.690.936

195.509

5,222.827

1,039,049

$  6,457,385

The net amount ofdeferrcd outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension is
reflected as a decrease to unrestricted net position in the amount of $2,766,449. The County reported
$1,217,578 as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from County contributions
subsequent to'the measurement date. This amount will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the measurement period ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized as a component of
pension expense in the measurement periods as follows:

June 30.

2022

2023

2024

2025

Actuarial Assumptions

$ (1,061,432)

(565,046)
(626,181)

(1.731,368)

$ (3,984,027)

The total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

Wage inflation

Salary increases

investment rale of return

2.00%

2.75%

5.60%,

6.75%,

[2.25% for tcachci-s)

average, including inflation

net of invcstmenl expense,

ncluding inflatioii

Mortality rates were based on the .Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Monality Tables with creditability
adjustments for each group (Police and Fire com'bined) and projected fully generational mortality
improvements using Scale MP-2019.
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(CONTINUED)

The actuarial assumptions used in (he June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2019. ■

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best estimate range
determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future reahretum range is
calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-lcrm expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return net of investment expenses by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding cxpecteJ inflation. Following is a table presenting target
allocations and geometric real rales of return for each asset class:

■ As.sfct Class

Domestic equity
International equity

Fixed income

Alternative investments

Real estate

Total

■Target Allocation

30%
20%

25%

15%
10%

100%

Weighted Average Long-Term
Exnecied Real Rate of Return

1.14-6.46%

2.37-5.53%
3.60%

7.25-8.85%
6.60%

Discount Rate

The discount rale used to measure the collective pension liability was'6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that'employer contributions will be made at rales equal to the difference between
aetuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. For purposes of the projection, member
contributions and employer contributions are projected based on the expected payroll of current members
only. Employer contributions arc determined based on the pension plan's actuarial funding policy and as
required by RSA IOO-A:I6. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan invcstmcnts wM applied to all-periods ofprojected benefit payments to determine the collectivjc pension liability.
Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the County's proportionate share of (he net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as whdt the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-pcrccntagc-point lower or l-pcrccniagc-point higher
than the single discount rate:

1% Decrease

f5.75%l

Current
Discount Rate

(6.15%)

1% Increase

f7.75%l

County's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 26.706.659 $ 18,674,491 $ 1 1,974,352
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

note 9—property TAXES

Property taxes levied to support the County are based on the assessed valuation of the prior April 1st for
all taxable real property. Under slate slatutw, the twenty-three Towns/City, that comprise Cheshire County
(all independent governmental units) collect County| taxes as part of local»propcrty tax assessments. As
collection agent, the Towns/City arc required to pay over to the County its share of property tax
assessments. The Towns/City assume financial responsibility for all uncollccted property taxes under
state statutes.

- V
to the State of New Hampshire. The original lease

NOTE 10—OPERATING LEASE INCOME

The County currently leases the Kccne C)ourthouse
agreement between the State of New Hampshire and a third party was assigned to the County. efTcetive
February 21, 2020. Terms of the agreement include monthly rental payments through November 30,
2028, including two options to extend for an additional 5 years _pcr .extension and an annual cost
escalation of 3%. The County recognized lease income of $607,227>undcr terms of the agreement during
the year ended December 31, 2021.

The County currently leases the Cheshire County District Court located in Jaffrey, New Hampshire to the
State of New Hampshire. Rent is payable to the County in semi-annually installments through,
•November 2021. The County recognized lease income of $136,305 under the terms of the agreement
during the year ended December 31, 2021. ^ •

The County currently leases the Cheshire County Farm to two separate independent parties. Rent/is
payable to the County on a monthly basis. During June 2016, the County entered into a lease agreement
with an independent party through October 1, 2021. The lease shall automatically renew for an additional
three years with a 5%i increase. During July 2016, the County entered into a lease agreement with another
independent party and has been extended through December 31, 2021. The lease amount is subject to
renegotiation every three years. The County recognized lease income of $28,872'for the farm during the
year ended December 31,2021. . '

^  • . f" * *
The minimum future rental payments to be received by the County for the abovc"leascs are as follows:

Year Ending

DccernberJi.

2022

2023

2024

202'5 ■

2026

2027-2028

711,089

673,856

689,7.03

683,564

704,070

.1,403,544

4,865,826
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

NOTE 11—RESTRICTED NET POSITION

N.

(CONTINUED)

Net position of govemmcnial activities is rcstrictcci for specific purposes at December 31, 2021 as
follows:

Donations

Deeds surcharge funds
Miscellaneous grant funds

NOTE 12—COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE

312,045

123,890

22.315

458.250

Fund balance components of the Cpunty's governmental funds at December 31, 2021 are comprised as
follows:

Fund Balances

NonspcndabU:

Prepaid items
Restricted for:

Nursing Home reconstruclion project
Energy upgrade project
Donations

Deeds surcharge
Miscellaneous grant funds

Committed for:

Capital Reserves

Assigned for:

' Jail canteen

Sheriff civil processing

Encumbrances

Carryforward appropriations
Unassigncd

NOTE 13—SELF INSURANCE

General

Fund

231,005

81,748

,559,556

il0,366

719,498
IS.888.3i6

ARPA

Fund

3,825

$ 18.520.489 3,825

Nonmajor Total

Govcmmenlal ■Governmental
Fiind.s Funds

$  231.005

S  599.473 599.473
2,129.005 2,129,005

230,297 312,045
123,890 123,890

18,490 22,315

1,559,556

197,038 ■  197,038
500 500

40,366
719,498

15,888.316
S  3,298.693 S 21.823,007

The County established a Health and Denial Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for and
finance its self-insurance program related to emplo>jcc and retiree health benefits. Under this program,
the Health and Dental-Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a maximum of $150,000 annually for
each individual plan participant. The County purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of
coverage provided by the fund and for all other risks af loss.

All funds of the County participate in the program and make payments to the.Hcalth and Dental Insurance
Fund based on estimates of the amounts-needed to pay prior and current year claims. The claims liability
reported in the fund at year end is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 10. which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information is available
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prior to the issuance of the financial statements and.the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Changes in the fund's claims liability amount for the past five years are as follows:'

Year Ending
December 3 i.

2017

2018

2019

2020

202)

Beginning
of Year

Liability

192.403

275.320

270.273

537,502

292.777

Current Year

Claims and

Changes in
Estimates •

$ 4,702,542

$ 5,062,686

$ 5,521,594

S 5.09^,465 ■
S 5.059.513

NOTE 14—RISK MANAGEMENT

Claims

Paid

$ (4.619.625)

$ (5.067,733)
$.(5,254,365)

$ (5,341.190)

$ (5.120.033)

End

of Year

275,320

270,273

537.502

292.777

232,257

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended
December 31. 2021, the County was a member of and participated in a public entity risk pool (Trust) for
property and liability insurance and worker's compensation coverage. Coverage has not been significantly
reduced from the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.

/  I
The Trust agreements permit the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there be a
dcficiency'in trust assets to meet its liabilities. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require members of pools-with a sharing of _ risk to determine whether or not such
assessment is probable and, if so, a reasonable estimate of such assessment. At this time, the Trust
foresees no likelihood of an additional assessment (or any of the past years. Claims expenditures and'
liabilities arc reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred arid the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported.
Based on the best available information there is no liability at December 31, 2021.

Property and Liability Insurance

The Trust provides certain property and liability insurance coverage to member towns, cities, and other
qualified political subdivisions of New HampshireJ As a member of the Trust, the County shares in
contributing to the cost of and receiving benefit from a self-insured pooled risk management (jrogram.
The progi'am includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund from which is paid up to $200,000 for each and
every covered property,,crime and/or liability loss that exceeds $1,000, up to an aggregate of $1,200,000.
Each pfopertyMoss is subject to a $|-,000 deductible. All losses over .the aggregate are covered by
insurance policies.

Worker's Compensation

The Trust provides statutory worker's compensation coverage to member towns, cities, and other
qualified politicarsubdivisions of New Hampshire, pic Trust is self-sustaining through annual member
premiums and provides coverage for the statutorily required workers'^compensation benefits and
employer's liability coverage up to $2,000,000. The
to $500,000 for each and every covered claim.

jrogram includes a Loss Fund from which is paid up
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NOTE 15—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

There may be various claims and suits pending against the County, which arise in the normal course of
the County's activities. In the opinion of management, any potential claims against the County which arc
not covered by insurance are immaterial and would not affect the financial position of the County.

Other Contingencies * *.

The County participates in the federally assisted Medieaid program .at the County Nursing Home. This
program is subject to financial and.compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at
this time; although the County expects such amounts,

Federal Grants

if any, to be immaterial.

The County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. ■ These.programs arc subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any. of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agency .cannot be determined at this lime, although
the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

\

NOTE 16— IMPLEMENTATION OF FUTURE itCCOUNTiNG STANDARDS

The Governmental Accounting Standards B.oard (GASB) has issued Statement No! 87, Leases, which the
County is required to implement in the .year ending jDccember 31, 2022. Management believes that this
pronouncement will have an impact on the County's government-wide financial statements. The County
will be required to recognize certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognize-as inflows of rcsour:es or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contracts. '
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SCHEDULE 1

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) • General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021

Balance

Budgeted Amounts

Actual

Variance with

Final Budget -

Favorable

Other financing sources (uses);

Transfers in

' Transfers out
Total Other fmaneing sources (uses)

506.500 5.138,150

(1.806.448)

506.500 3,331.702

3.641.651

(1,396.300)

2.245.351

Original Final Amppnl^ (Unfavorable)'
Revenues:

Taxes %  28.901.083 $  28.718.371 $  28,718,371 $

Intergovernmental 6,784.835 11,712,679 10,830.446 (882,233)

Charges for services •16.404,328 16,389,328 15.853.929 (535.399)

iniercsi income 60,000 60,000 21.156 (38.844)

Miscellaneous 932.832 964.738 1,043.769. 79,031

Total Revenues •  53.083.078 57,845,116 56;467.67l (1,377,445)

Expenditures:

Current operations:

General government 6,618,940 6,662,074 6,757.197 (95,123)

Public safety 8,963.484 ^ 9,067,929 8,472,034 595.89S

Human services 14.179.349 17.323.290 13,997,571 3.325,719

Conservation 68.467 69,391 69,371 20

Nursing home 19.735,662 21,152,967 19,078,006 2.074.961

•Capital outlay 1,278,101 1.007,679 675,575 332.104

Debt service: •

Principal retirement 3.831.463 3,831,463 3,846,213 (14.750)

Interest and fiscal charges 2,000,843 2.000,843 1,895.339 105.504

Total Expenditures 56,676.309 .61.115.636 54.791,306 6.324.330

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures (3.593,231) (3.270.520) 1,676,365 4.946.885

(1,496.499)

4I0.M8

(1.086.351)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance at beginning of year
• Budgetary Basis
Fund Balance at end of year •

- Budgetary Basis

(3.086.731)

12.917.103

61.182

12.917.103

3,921,716

12.917.103

$  9.830.372 S 12.978,285 " S 16.838.819

See accompanying noles to the required supplementary information
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SCHEDULE 2

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Changes in the County's Proportionate Share of
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

the Net OPEB Liability

Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Plan Information Only
County's County's Proportionate Plan Fidueiary

County's Proportionate Share of the Net Net Position

Proportion of Share of the • County's OPEB Liability as a Percentage

Measurement the Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered as a Percentage of of the Total

Prrind Ended Liabilirv Liahilitv Payroll Cnvrrcd Payroll OPF.B Liability

$June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30,2016

0.21442462%

0.23335097%

0.27241462%

0.30274245%

0.22908185%

0.25690930%

858,678

1,021,398

1,194,296

1,386,093

1,047.440

1,243,711

 15,603.420

$  14,880,674
I

S  14,146.452
i
$ 13,807,662
i  •
$ 13.971.937
I
S 13.076,762

6.86%

8.44%

10.04%

7.50%

9.51%

7.74%

7.75%

7.53%

7.91%

5.21%

Investment ..

Measurement Salary Rate of Mortality Mortality

Periods Inflation Incrca.scs Table Scale

June 30,2020 2.00% 5.60% 6.75% Pub-2010 MP-20I9

June 30, 2016.- 2019 2.50% 5.60% 7.25% . .  RP-20I4 MP-2015

June 30, 2013 -2015 3.00% 3.75-5.80% 7.75% xRP-2000 Scale AA

1

See accoriipanving noles to (he required supplemetUary in/ormaiion
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SCHEDULE 3

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of County OPEB Contributions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cost-Sharinc Multiple Employer Plan Information Only

Year Ended

{■
December 31, 2021

r

December 31, 2020

December 31. 2019

December 31, 2018

December 31.2017

December 31. 2016

Contributions in
. Relation to the

• Contributions

Contractually •  Contractually Contribution County's as a Percentage
Required Required j Deficiency Covered of Covered

Contribution Contribution (ixctss) PayrQll ■ Pavroll

S  97,790 S  (97.790) S s 15,803,266 0.62%

S  > 106,980 S  (106,980) s s 15,311,264 0.70%

$  • 113,350, S  (ll3.35p) $ s 14,333,058 0.79%

$  130.727 S  (130,727) $ $ 14.021,972 0.93%

S  132,899 S  (132,89|9) $ s 13,673.027
•|

0.97%

S  136,622 $  (136,622) $
\

$ 13,250,079 1.03%

See accompanying notes to the required siipplcmentary informalion
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SCHEDULE4

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Changes in ihc County's Total OPEB Uablllty and Related
For the Year Ended December 31. 2021

Sinfllc Employer Plan Information Only

Ratios

Total OPEB Liability:

Service cost $ 133,953

Interest 48,026

Changes of assumptions or other inputs

DilTcrcnccs between expected and actual experience

Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

(33,320)

148,659

Tola! OPEB Liability al beginning of year
Total OPEB Liability at end of year

Covered employee payroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage

of covered employee payroll

Significant Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate

Health cost trend rates:

Initial

Ultimate

Mortality data set
Mortality improvement scale

2.282.041

$ 2.430,700

2m

$  ' 131,172

44.990

782.655

(466,012)

f32.628)

460.177

1.821.864

$ 2,282,041

2019 2018

$  119,362 $ 127,528

67,576 55,307

(116,393)

(26,533) (25,488)

160,405

1,661.459

40,954

1.620.505

$ 12,995.347 S 12.740,536

$  1,821,864 , S 1,661.459

$1 1,883,534 $1 1,650,524

18.70%

2.12%

2.0% - 2020

5.0% - 2030

SoJ RP-2014
MP-2020.

17.91%

2.12%

2.0% - 2020

5.0% - 2030

SOA RP-2014

MP-2020

15.33%*

4.10%

14.26%

3.44%

2.21%- 2018 2.21%-2018

5.0% - 2028 5.0% - 2028

SOA RP-2014 SOA RP-2014

MP-2017 MP-2017

Sec accompanying nolcs to the required supplementary information
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SCHEDULES

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Changes in the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Measurement

Period Ended

June 30, 2021

June 30. 2020

June 30.2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30,2016

June 30.2015

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2013

County's
Proportion of

the Net Pension

LiiibHitv

0.42136353%.

0.42490015%

0.44018702% ,

0.44406881%

0.49770168%

0.49712847%

0.50078953%

0.49480395%

0.48048526%

County's

Proportionate

Share of the

Net Pension

Liability

S  18.674.491

S 27,177,256

J 21.180,279

S 21,382,812

$ 24,476,933

X 26,435,280

S 19,838,913

X I8.572;89I

X 20,679,050

County's

Covered

/ Payroll

X 15.603,420

X  14,880.674

X  14,146.452

X 13,807,662
1

X 13,971.937
I

X 13,0.76,762

X 12,812,858
I

X 12,278.583
I

X 11,655,631

County's Proportionate

Share of the Net

Pension Liability (Asset)

as a Percentage of
Covered PavroM' .

119.68%

182.63%

149.72%

154.86%

175.19%

202.15%

154.84%

151.26%

177.42%

• Significant Actuarial Assunipllons

PlanFiduciary

Net Position

as a Percentage

of the Total

Pension Liability

72.22%

58.72%.

65.59%

64.73%

62,66%

58.30%

65.47%

66.32%

/
59.81%-

Investment

Measurement Salary ■ Rate of Mortality Mortality

Periods InHation Increases Table Scale

June 30. 202U 2.00% 5.60% 6.75% Pub-2UI0 MK-20iy

June 30, 2016-2019 2.50% '  5.60% 7.25% RP-2014 ^MPt2015

June 30. 2013 - 2015- . 3.00% '3.75-5.80% 7.75% RP-2000 Scale AA

J

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary
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SCHEDULE 6

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Counry Pension Contributions
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Year Ended

Conlractually

Required

Contribution

Contributions in

Relation to the

Conlractually

Required
Contribution

Contribution

Deficiency

(Excess) .

County's

Covered

Payroll

Sec accompanying notes to the required supplementary information
44

Contributions

as a Percentage

of Covered

Payroll

December 31,2021 S 2.192.391 S (2,192.391) $ $ 15,803,266 .13.87%

December 31, 2020V. s 1.923.784 S (1.923.784) S s 15.311,264 12.56%

December 31, 2019 s 1.852.292 s (1.852,292) S $ 14,333,058 12.92%

December 31, 2018 $ 1,886,114 s (1,886,114) $ $ 14,021,972 13.45%

December 31, 2017 s 1,822.410 s (1,822,410) . s s 13,673,027 13.33%

December 31, 2016 s 1,755,339 $ (1,755,339) s -  ■ $ 13,250.079 13.25%

December 31,'2015 s 1,799,614 s (1.799,614) % $ 13,385,305 13.44%

December 31,2014 $ 1,651 J49 $ (1,651,749)' $ $ 12.607,567 ■ 13.10%

December 31,2013 '% 1.397,108 s (1,397,10;0 . $ s 11.944,974 ■  11.70%

\



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 '

NOTE I—BUDGET TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION

Genera! Fund

Amounts recorded as budgetary amounts in the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General Fund (Schedule 1) arc reported on the basis
budgeted by. the County. Those amounts differ from those reported in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit D). General Fund budgetary revenues and
other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses were adjusted for encumbrances,
capital lease issuance, non-budgetary revenues and expenditures, and budgetary transfers as follows;

Revenues

and Other

Financing

Sources

S 60,013.432

(28,969)

(37.3701

162.229

60.109.322

Expenditures

and Other

Financing

Uses

$ 55,541,364

40,366

(58,708)

(28,969)

(28.447)
722,000

I 56,187.606

Per Exhibit D

Encumbrances • December 31, -2021

Encumbrances - December 31, 2020

Capital lease issuance
Nun-buUgclary revenues and expenditures
Budgetary transfers

Per Schedule I

Major Special Revenue Fund

The County adopts its budgets under regulations of the New Hampshire Department of Revenue
Administration which' differ from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Consequently, budgetary information is not presented for the ARPA Fund as the information is
neither practical nor meaningful.

NOTE 2—BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE

The components of the budgetary fund balance for the General Fund at December 31, 2021 arc as
follows:

Nonspcndabic: .

Prepaid items .

Assigned for:
Carryforward appropriations

Unasslgned

$  231.005

719.498

15.888,316

S 16.838,819
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COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 \

\  i

NOTE 3—SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF

THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF COUNTY OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS

In accordance with CASE Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reportingjor Postemp/oyment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, the County is required to disclose historical information for each of the
prior ten years within a schedule of changes in the County's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
and schedule of County OPEB contributions. The County implemented the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 75 during the year ended December 31, 2018. Accordingly, the historic information has
only been presented for those years whieh information was readily available. Additional disclosures will
be made in future years as additional information becomes available.

NOTE 4—SCHEDULE OF CHANCES IN THE COUNTY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND

RELATED RATIOS
/

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting arid Financial Reporting for Po'stemphynxent
Benefits Other Than Pensions, the County is required to disclose historical information for each of the
prior ten years within a schedule of changes in^ihc (tounty's total OPEB liability and related ratios. The
County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 during the year ended December 31,
2018. Accordingly, the historic information has only been presented for those years which information
was readily available. Additional disclosures will be made in future years as additional information
becomes available.

No assets are accumulated in a (rust that meets the criteria in paragraph.4 of Statement 75.

NOTE 5—SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COUNTY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF
THE NET PENSION I.IARIIJTV AND SrHF.DIlI.F. OF rOllNTV PENSION rONTRIRIITIONS

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the
County is required to disclose, historical inforinationi for each of the prior ten years within a schedule of
changes in the County 's proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of County pension
contributions. The County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68 during the year ended
December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the historic information has only been presented for those years which
information was readily available. Additional disclosures will be made in future years as the information
becomes availably.
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SCHEDULE I '
COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

•  t

Federal Granting Agcncy/Recipient
State Agency/Grant Program^Utc

-Grant Number

department OF COMMERCE

Received Directiy From U.S. Treo-tur)' Deparimetil

Economic Development Cluster:
C.OVID-19 Economic Adjtislmcnl Assistance
'  «0I-79.151I1 '
Total £conofn/c Development Ctfi.sier

Total Depaiim'eni of Commerce

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Pas.s Through Paymentsfrom the Community Development
Finance Authority

Community Development Block Grants / State's Program and
Non-Entiilement Grants in Hawaii

«M03-CDMCl-3

#20-403-CDHS

#l9-403-CDED

//20-'103-CDMCI-3

COVID-19 ff20-403-CDMG-CV

COVID-19 «0-403-CDPSO/

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Received Directly From U.S. Treasury Department
COVID-19 Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program

«207rwvn.RX.I 109

Pass Through Payments from the New Hampshire
Deportment of Justice ,
Crime Victim Assistance

«2019.V2-GX-0050

Violence Against Women Formula Grants
#2020;WF.AX-00I5

Receh-ed Directly From US. Treastir)' Department
BuilclproofVcsi Partnership Program

#20208UBX2CK)2M90 .
0BUBX2IO2S876

Assistance

Listing
Number

1.307

14.228

Expenditures

16.034

I6.57S

I6.S88 '

16.607

37.709

37.709

37.709

241,514

486,161

1.472

247,495

416.836

163.015

1.556.493

1.556.493

50.858

30.000

83

1.353

Expenditures to

Subrecinienl.s

6.061 .

9.459

9.459

1.461.457

1.461.457

.436

Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
/H5PBJA-2I-GG-01677-J

«020-DJ-BX-0l06 •

Equitable Sharing Program

Total Department of Justice

16.738

16.922

5,235

7.803

13.038 •

1.739

103.132

6.720

6.720

See notes to .schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards
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SCHEDULE I

COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedult of Cxpcndhurcs of Federal Awards (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
State Agency/Grant Program/State
Grant Number ^ ^ :

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Pass Through Poymeiiis from the New Hampshire
Department of Transportation
Transit Services Programs Cluster:
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities

DOT5310 «i385-202l-4 . ]
DOTS3IO

Total Transit Services Programs Cluster I
1

Total Department of Transportation |
I

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Pass Through Paymentsfrom the Stale ofNew Hampshire
Governor's Office
COVID-19 Coronavifus Relief Fund

Reeci^'cd Directly From U.S. Trea.sury Depanmeni
COVID-19 Coronavirus Stale and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Total Department of (he Treasui^

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass Through Paymentsfrom the New Hampshire
Department ofHealth and Human Services
Public Health Emergency Preparedness

WU90TP9220I8

Environmental Public Health and EmergeiKy Response
t/UEIEHOOI332

%  ̂

Received Directly From U.S. Treasury Department

Comprehensive Community Mental Heallh Services fur Children
with Serious Emotional Disturbances (SED)

tHH79SM063408

tfiH79SM0S29S9

Pass Through Paymentsfrom the New Hamp-diirc
Department ofHealth and Human ̂ervrcc.*'.
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects. State and Local
Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention and Surveillance of
Blood.Lcad Levels'in Children

■ffNUE2EH0M08

Assistance

Listing Expenditures to
Number Expenditures Subrecinients

20.513

21.027

93.069

93.070

93.104

93.197

87.656
95.520

183.176

183,176

21.019 . 195.000

3.2D8.902

3.403.902

49.662

44,896

309,277
739.402

1.048.679

174.453

174.453

48.349

40.814

3.498 3.180

COVID-1-9 Immuniuiion Cooperative Agreements
lfNU23IP922595

93.268
19.353 17.593

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards
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SCHEDULE)

COUNTY OF.CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule or-Expcndltu'rcs of Federal Awards (Continued)
For (he Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Granting Agcncy/Rccipieni ' ^
State Agency/Grant Program/State
Grant Number •

Assistance

Listing
Number

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (CONTINUED)
Pax.x Through Paymentsfrom the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Infectious Diseases (ELC) 93.J23

#NU50CK000522 ,

COVlD-19 Public Health Emergency Response: Cooperative Agfeemcni- 93.354
for Emergency Response: Public Health Crisis Response

ffNU90TP922l06

Received Directly From U.S. Treasury Department
COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund

Paits Thmtigh Payments from the New Hamp.xhirc
Department ofHealth and Human Services
Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant

tfT009037

Pas.x Through Paymentsfrom the New Hampshire
Bureau ofDrug and Alcohol Services

• Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse }

«TI0I0035 , •

Total Department of Health and Human Services

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Pass Through Paymentsfrom the New Hampshire
Department of Safety
COVID-19 Disaster Grants ■ Public Assistance (Prcsidcntially
Declared Disasters)

#FEMA-DR-45I6-NH

Homeland Security Grant Program
#EMW-20I8-SSt000S5

#EMW-202(LSS-00045-SO

Total Department of Homeland Security

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards .

93.498

93.758

93.959

97.036

97.067

Expenditures

395^

24.150

458.900

37.797

35.400

2.117.535

10.330

80,055

161.760

24L8I5

252.145

Expenditures to
SubreciDicnt.s

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures of federal awards
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4.577

•33.791

170.259

S  7.654.092 S 1.822.348



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 ;

NOTE 1-^BASIS OF PRESENTATION j

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of the Gounlyof Cheshire, New Hampshire (the County) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2021! The information in this Schedule is presented.in

Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Audit Requirement for Federal Awards (Uniform

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Administrative Requirements-. Cost Principles, and
Guidance); Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not
intended to and does not present the nnancial position, changes in net/position, or cash flows of.ihc
County. • !

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is
described in Note I of the County's basic financial slatemcnts. Such, expenditures arc recognized'
following the cost principles contained in thc-Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
arc not allowable or arc limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

The County has elected to use the lO-pcrcent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4—PROVIDER RELIEF FUND

During, the year ended December 31, 2020, the County recognized total, revenue of $458,900 from the
Provider Relief Fund (ALN #93.498). Of this amount, $420,003 is based on lost revenue the County's
nursing home facility. This amount is reported on thc|Schcdule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the
year ended December 31, 2021, per Uniforrh Guidance and based upon the Provider Rdicf Fund report
submitted to the United States Department of Health and Human Services.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
and ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS p|eRFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENTAUDm^GSTAr^DARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners

County of Cheshire, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the UnitW States
of America and thc standards applicable to financial jaudils contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information^of the County of Cheshire, New
Hampshire, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
siaicmcnis, which collectively comprise the Coun^ of Cheshire, New Hampshire's basic financial
Statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 17, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReporHng

In plarming and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County of
Cheshire, New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on'the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the cttectivcness of the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's iniemal control.

A deficiency in ihiernat control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofj performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is 'a rcasonablc'possibility that a material misstatcment
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit wc.did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's
financial statements are free from material missiatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 'agreements, noncomplianc'e with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements! However, providing an opinion'^on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliancc or other matters that arc required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal'control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards'\n considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

H CLa-yyu^ ^ ̂
Manchester, New Hampshire
May 17,2022
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners

County of Cheshire, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
<

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

Wc have audited the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's compliance with the types of
compliancc.rcquircments identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct'and material effect on each of the County ofjCheshirc, New Hampshire's major federal programs
for the year ended December 31,2021. The County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021. s

I  , •

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations ̂zr\ 200, L/nf/brm Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County of Cheshire, NeWHampshire and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. Wc
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is |sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's complianccAviih the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities ofManagemetU for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, irhplementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
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requirements of laws; statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable
to the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's federal programs.
Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable a^umnce about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, jwhether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's compliance bas.ed on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore it is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance' with GAAS, Goyernmenl A^ udiling Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that rcsulting;from error, as fraud may.involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report
on compliance about the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole. |

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the County of^ Cheshire, New Hampshire's internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniforin Guidance, but not for the purpose jof expressing an opinion on the cfTcctivcncss of the
County of Cheshire, New Hampshire's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to'communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any| significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the'audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance docs not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a.federal program on.a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance |wilh a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. I , ,
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Our considerallon of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in .the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above andwas not designed to'identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance |ihal might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance.. G^ivcn these limitation's, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that wc consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses
compliance may exist that were not identified.

of significant deficiencies in internal control over

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cfTcciivcncss of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is .not suitable for any other purpose. >

^  ̂ C.

Manchester, New Hampshire

May 17,2022
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County of Cheshire, New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31,2021

Section I—Summary of Auditor*s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared In accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
/'Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant dcfrcicncyfics) identified

Noncompliancc matcriafto financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(cs) identified?
Significant dcficiency(ics) identified

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal programs;

ALN Numbcits)

Unmodified - all reooriine unifs

yes

yes

yes

_2( no
_2( hone reported

no

yes , X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X  no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Community Development Block Grants/

.. 14.228 Stale's program and Non-Eniitlcmcnl Grants in Hawaii

21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

93.498 Provider Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A

Auditce qualified as low-risk audilec?

and Type B program; S 750.000

X  yes ; no
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Section II—Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section lU—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs required to be reported under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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MRCC Members

Executive Committee

Ellen Avery, Community Volunteer Transportation Company - Chairperson

Charles Pratt, Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services - Vice-chair

Suzanne Bansley, Cheshire County - Treasurer

Mary Jensen, Keene Senior Center - Secretary

Current Members

Ellen Avery, Comrnunity Volunteer Transportation Company

Kathy Baird, Monadnock RSVP

Suzanne Bansley, Cheshire County

Karen Brook, Big Brothers Big Sisters o.

Elizabeth Chip.man, Keene Housing Kic
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Daniel Smith, Keene YMCA
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Lisa Steadman. Monadnock Peer Support
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Terry Johnson, Senior Project Manager

Southwest Region PJanning Commission

37 Ashuelot Street, Keene, NH 03431

Phone: (603) 357-0557

Email: tjohnson [@] swrpc.org
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TERRY L JOHNSON
I
(

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

SOUTHWEST REGION PLANNING COMMISSION; Keene, NH

Senior Project Manager. 2019-Present

Design and manage ;regionwide public health planning services and projects. Engage social
service agencies and partners across health, | planning, transportation, housing, education,
economic development and other sectors, to improve population and community health.
Accomplishments include:

•  Serve as Mobility Manager for Region S. j
•  Provide leadership and administrative support to the Monadnock Region Coordinating

Council for Community Transportation, i

•  Conducted Monadnock Rural Comrhunities Opioid Response Planning Project
(MRCORPP) Needs Assessment.

•  Coordinated- updates to Cheshire Medical Center's Community Health Needs
Assessment and Greater Monadnock Public Health Network's Community. Health

Improvement Plan.

• ^ Provide grant writing and administrative support to municipalities and subrecipients of
Community Development Block Grant funds. »

T'

FOUNDATION FOR HEALTHY COMMUNITIES, Concord, NH
•Director. Healthy Eating Active Living NH (HEAL). 2008-2018

EXCTER HOSPITAL, Portsmouth, NH

Practice Director. Equinox Health and Healing.2006-2008

NEW HAMPSHIRE CELEBRATES WELLNESS, Concord, NH

Executive Director. 2003-2006

SPRINGFIELD ATHLETIC CLUB, Mobile, AL

Executive Director, 2001-2003

WTS INTERNATIONAL, Silver Spring, MO

Senior Vice President. 1997-2001

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science^ Health and Physical Education, University of .Louisiana at Lafayette,
Lafayette, .LA

AWARDS AND RECOGNmONS

2017 NH Governor's Council on Physical

Award

NH Governor's Council on Physical Activity and Health service recognition

Activity and Health Outstanding Achievement



COUNTY OF CHESHIRE, NH

On behalf of Monadnock Region Coordinating Council for Community Transportation

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this Contract

Terry Johnson SWRPC Senior Project Mgr

MRCC Regional Mobiliry Mgr

Unknown* ^ ~90%* $121,795*

•Key Personnel for the Monadnock Region Coordinating Council for Community Transportation
(MRCC) is the Regional Mobility Manager. This position is filled by a combination of Southwest
Region Planning Commission (SWRPC) staff members through a subcontract between Cheshire
County and SWRPC. Due to this being a subcontract, the salaries of individuals working on the
contract is information not requested or required. Tlhc percent paid from this contract is noted at
about 90% as^the subcontract budget is for Terry Johnson to devote 1,888 hours to this work. The
amount paid from this contract is the exact amount included in the subcontract budget. The rate used
in the subcontract budget is a loaded rate inclusive of benefits arid overhead, so (he amount paid
from this contract is a total compensation rate and not a base rate. SWRPC's executive director, a
principal planner, a staff planner, and the office manager all also will bill hours to the subcontract for
a total estimation of 3,046 hours per year combined from all SWRPC staff.


